

# 2023 年 9-12 月雅思口语 Part1

# 参考资料

# (A 难度)

感谢小伙伴使用雅思过过过淘宝店铺口语素材! 在您使用过程中,有以下几点注意事项,请您在 复习中留意:

 提供 Part1 素材的目的,旨在帮助大家尽快掌握高频考题动态,并在短期内积累可用的地道口 语表达,以及通过素材启发考生回答思路。任何素材思路无法全部完美适合所有人,因此<u>建议练</u> <u>习中结合个人理解方式,做内容的适当删减、扩充等调整</u>。以达到更高效复习的状态。调整内容 时,如有疑问欢迎联系 Penny 解答。

2. 文中<u>含下划线的内容</u>是高分地道表达。所有标注 "新题"的题目为9月新增考题,并在明年 1-4月会继续考。所有新题的配套中文翻译会在9月底添加。

3. 复习时,请根据自己喜好和个人情况,灵活运用参考答案及加分表达,切勿背诵逐字稿;

4. 建议复习前仔细阅读《练习方法说明书》,同时复习过程中对练习方法、素材语法词汇等有疑 问,欢迎随时联系 Penny.

5. 如需了解雅思考官课、菲教陪练、考官口语/写作训练营,请扫码咨询客服



——雅思过过过淘宝店铺

# ①以下为本店雅思考官介绍·



曾在中国任雅思考官四年(2016-2020) 在中国很多城市,如上海、苏州、杭州、 北京,福州等地,都担任过雅思口语和写作考官 有丰富的雅思口语和写作评分和教学经验 墨尔本大学教育学硕士 15年丰富英语教学经验: 曾任澳洲顶级私立高中英文老师 曾在澳洲语言学校、中国河南大学任英文老师

雅思考官 Bianca



# 雅思考官 Candice

18年到22年这5年间任职大脑地区的雅思考容 曾在上海南京等城市任提供口语考试和批改雅思作。 疫情期间也作为雅思机考的在线考育工作 有非常丰富的视频考试经验 累计经历的雅思口语考生有上万名 Candice曾在中、韩、沙特等亚洲国家任BSL英语考: 非常和蔼亲切,有很丰富的教学经验

过过过



**雅思考官 Semin** 曾在2015-2021年七年间在大陆任雅思考官 在中国很多城市都担任过雅思口语和写作考官 考过几万名中国考生,对中国学生的情况非常熟悉 滑铁户大学教育学专业 在世界各地有丰富的ESL英语教学经验, 曾任上海精英私立学校英语老师

曾任两所世界级游轮公司任高级培训师



# 雅思考官 Stuart

曾在墨西哥和英国任高级雅思考官十二年 (2010-2022), 累计考过超十万名考生 曾任IDP考官主管,培训大量考官和成绩复核 对雅思口语考试的评分非常准确和极深的了解 持有业界最权威剑桥CELTA证书 曾在墨西哥任多年大学英文写作老师



**雅思考官 June (华裔)** 曾在2018年到2021年四年间在上海和 很多大陆城市担任雅思口语和写作考官 有非常丰富的考官经验。对中国学生的情况非常了解 June老师是加拿大华裔。所以可以使用中文交流 是非常少有的华裔雅思考官。并且可以使用中文教学 持有业内最权威剑桥CELTA证书 在世界各地有丰富的ESL英语教学经验。 曾在中国和日本多所高级英语教育机构担任老师



# 雅思考官 Brandon

曾在大點担任五年差思考官 (2018-2022) 曾在很多中国城市作雅思口语和写作考官的工作 疫情期间也作为雅思机考的在线口语考官工作 有非常丰富的视频考试经验 累计经历的雅思口语考生有上万名 Brandon也有十分丰富的英语数学经验 曾在多所亚洲大学任职英语讲师 有十三年对外英语数学的经验。

# ②以下为本店菲律宾外教介绍:



2



# 2023 年 9-12 月 Part1 Topic 列表

# 目录

Topic 1 Study(含 school) 工作族不需要复习该主题	4
Topic 2 Work 学生族不需要复习该主题	6
Topic 3 Home(the area you live in)	8
Topic 4 Hometown (含 the city you live in)	
Topic 5 Geography (新题)	
Topic 6 Fishing(新题)	
Topic 7 Helping others(新题)	
Topic 8 Gifts(新题)	
Topic 9 Musical instrument (新题)	
Topic 10 Cinema/Films (新题)	
Topic 11 Loud noise (新题)	
Topic 12 Robot (新题)	
Topic 13 Running (新题)	
Topic 14 Chatting (新题)	
Topic 15 Tea or coffee (新题)	
Topic 16 Map (新题)	
Topic 17 Clothing (新题)	
Topic 18 Transport (考频不高,可以不复习)	
Topic 19 Wild animals	
Topic 20 Teachers	
Topic 21 Bags	
Topic 22 Dream	
Topic 23 Friends	
Topic 24 Ice cream	
Topic 25 Favorite day/Week	
Topic 26 Concentration	
Topic 27 language	
Topic 28 Health/Keep healthy	73
Topic 29 Fixing things	
Topic 30 Day off	
Topic 31 Rain	
Topic 32 Riding a bike(考频不高,可以不复习)	
雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创	

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



(Topic1-18 所有新题的中文译文在本月底前更新)

Topic 1 Study(含 school) 工作族不需要复习该主题

本主题每个人情况不同,如有需要,可私信 Penny 根据个人情况做内容的免费私人订制。

1. Where do you study? / What do you do? / Do you work or study? (高频)

I'm currently a senior student at Hunan University, and I'm studying computer science at the moment.

## 你在哪里学习? /你是做什么的? /你是工作还是学习?

我目前是湖南大学的一名大四学生,现在我的专业是计算机科学。

## 2. How do you usually travel to the place where you study? (9 月新增高频)

A: I take public transportation to get to work/school. <u>It's a lot more environmentally conscious</u>, which I feel good about. Plus, when I take the bus and subway, I don't have to focus on anything. I can just sit back and read a book or listen to music. <u>It's a pretty relaxing commute</u>. 0 雅思问题通知文

**B:** I usually walk to school with my friends since I live in a dorm that's just a 10-minute walk from the school buildings. It's really convenient for us

A: 我通常乘坐公共交通工具去上班/上学。<u>这更环保</u>,我觉得很好。而且,当我坐公交车和地铁时,我 不必专注于任何事情。我可以坐下来读书或听音乐。<u>这是一段相当轻松的通勤时间</u>。

**B**: 我通常和朋友一起步行去学校,因为我住的宿舍离学校教学楼<u>只有 **10** 分钟步行的距离</u>。对我们来说非常方便。

# 3. How do you feel after you finish a day of study? (9 月新增高频)

A: I feel really tired after a day of study. <u>It takes a lot of mental energy to stay focused on my work</u>. So when I get home, I like to just <u>do something mindless</u> for a few hours. Whether I'm watching TV or scrolling on my phone, <u>it's nice to turn off my brain for a while</u>. [#@@@\_\_\_\_\_\_#@@@@\_\_\_\_\_#@@@@\_\_\_\_\_\_#

**B:** I <u>feel surprisingly okay</u> after a day of study. <u>It's definitely taxing</u> to spend the whole day on school. But I'm really excited about what I'm studying. So I usually chat with my friends or family and let them know what I've been learning. It's fun for me to share this knowledge.

## 你在一天学习结束后感觉如何?

A: 学了一天后,我感觉非常累。<u>集中精力工作需要耗费很多能量</u>。所以当我回家时,我喜欢做几个小时 <u>不用动脑的事情</u>。无论是看电视还是刷手机,<u>把大脑关闭一段时间都很不错</u>。

**B**: 学了一天后,<u>我感觉出奇地还好</u>。整天都花在学习上<u>确实很费力</u>。但我对自己正在学的东西非常兴奋。 所以我通常会和朋友或家人聊天,告诉他们我学到了什么。与他人分享这些知识对我来说很有趣。

# <mark>见下页</mark>



## 4.What do you like about your studies?(高频)

A: The best part of school for me is the internships. We spend half of our time in class and half of our time doing work experience. I know that theory is important, but <u>working in the field is where I learn the most</u>.

**B:** My favorite part about my studies is <u>socializing with my peers</u> who are enrolled in the same program. I'm in my final year, so we've been together for 4 years now, and we've gotten really close. The best part of university is <u>the bonds that are forged through shared experiences</u>. ◆ 推想上寸上寸円句實店舗職

## 你觉得你的学习中的哪些方面?

A: 对我来说,学校最好的部分是实习。我们把一半的时间花在课堂上,一半的时间花在实习上。我知道 理论很重要,但是在这个领域实习使我学到更多。

**B**: 我最喜欢的学习的一部分是<u>与参加同一项目的同伴社交</u>。我们认识4年了,在最后一年我们关系真的 很亲密。通过共同经历而建立起来的纽带是大学里最好的一部分。

## 5. What do you need to study better?(高频)

**A:** I could certainly benefit from reviewing my notes after every class <u>while the information is still fresh</u> <u>in my mind</u>. I know that taking 10 or 15 minutes to <u>go over everything</u> would save me a lot of time studying in the future.

**B:** Getting enough sleep the night before my morning classes would help me a lot. Sometimes I have to work late, and paying attention in class the next day is <u>a major struggle</u>. Fortunately, <u>caffeine is always</u> there to help me make it through <u>memory</u> memory and the struggle is the memory of the memory of

## 你需要做什么才能更好地学习?

**A**:每节课结束后,当<u>这些信息在我的脑海中还仍然很新鲜时</u>,我就可以从复习我的笔记中受益。我知 道花 10 或 15 分钟<u>复习全部</u>会节省我很多时间学习。

**B**: 在早上上课的前一晚有足够的睡眠对我很有帮助。有时我不得不工作到很晚,第二天在课堂上专心学习很困难。幸运的是,<u>咖啡总是能帮助我克服困倦</u>。

# 6. How much time do you spend studying every week?(高频)

A: When I have a test or exam, I normally <u>spend up to 30-40 hours</u> studying per week. Most of the time however, just doing my homework and <u>a quick review of my notes</u> after class is sufficient. ③蕹锶之寸之寸絕 绚( 寶店舖原創 ミ

**B:** I don't need to spend a lot of time studying because I have a very good memory. I find that if  $\underline{I}$  concentrate attentively during classes, I can <u>effortlessly recall</u> the material during exams

# 你每周花多少时间学习?

A: 当我有考试时,我通常<u>每周花 30-40 个小时学习</u>。然而大多数时候,只要做好作业,并在课后<u>快速复</u> <u>习一下我的笔记</u>就足够了。

**B**: 我不需要花很多时间学习,因为我的记忆力很好。我发现,<u>如果我在课堂上集中精力,</u>我可以毫不费 力地回忆起考试的内容。

雅思 过过过

## Topic 2 Work 学生族不需要复习该主题

本主题每个人情况不同,如有需要,可私信 Penny 根据个人情况做内容的免费私人订制。

1. Where do you work? / What's your job? /What do you do? / Do you work or study? / /What work do you do? (高频)

I'm <u>currently</u> working fulltime as a programmer at Baidu; <u>I've been working there for</u> 5 years. **你在哪里工作?**/你的工作是什么?/你是做什么工作的?/你是工作还是学习?/你做什么工作? 我目前在百度做全职程序员;我已经在那里工作了5年。

## 2. How do you usually go/travel to work? (9 月新增高频)

A: I take public transportation to get to work. It's a lot more environmentally conscious, which I feel good about. Plus, when I take the bus and subway, I don't have to focus on anything. I can just sit back and read a book or listen to music. It's a pretty relaxing commute. 8 權總再通過續重音編陳創《

**B:** I get to work by car. I was able to buy a car a few years back, <u>which was a total game-changer</u>. Now <u>I</u> <u>have more control over</u> when I leave the house and which route I can take. Of course, it also depends on traffic. But it's nice to have the independence of my own car

# 你通常怎么去上班?

A: 我通常乘坐公共交通工具上班。这更环保,我觉得很好。而且,当我坐公交车和地铁时,我不必专注 于任何事情。我可以坐下来读书或听音乐。这是一段相当轻松的通勤时间。

**B**: 我开车上班。几年前我买了辆车,<u>这真的改变了我的生活(改变了游戏规则)</u>。现在<u>我可以更自由地</u> <u>决定</u>何时离开家以及选择哪条路线。当然,这也要取决于交通情况。但拥有自己的车让我感到很自主。

# 3. How do you feel after you finish a day of work? (9 月新增高频)

**A:** I usually <u>feel pretty wiped</u> after a day of work. I don't have <u>a physically demanding job</u>. But <u>the mental</u> <u>energy that I use at work</u> makes me feel tired anyways. I try to take some time to relax when I get home. It's nice to <u>watch TV for a bit</u> or just scroll on social media.

**B:** I usually <u>feel amped up</u> after a day of work. I have a really fast-paced job. It's hard work, but it's <u>genuinely exciting</u> because I'm passionate about what I do. So I actually have a lot of energy when I get home. I like to go for a run or do something active to <u>burn some of that energy</u>.

你工作一天后的感觉如何?

A: 通常我在工作一天后<u>感觉相当疲惫</u>。我做的不是一份<u>体力要求很高的工作</u>。但<u>在工作中需要的能量</u>还 是让我感到疲倦。当我回家时,我会尽量花一些时间放松。看一会儿电视或者在社交媒体上浏览一下感 觉很不错。

**B**:通常我在工作一天后<u>感到很有活力</u>。我的工作节奏很快。虽然很辛苦,但因为我对自己的工作充满热情,所以<u>我总是很兴奋(充满干劲)</u>。所以当我回家时,我实际上还有很多精力。我喜欢去跑步或者做一些活动来<u>消耗这些精力</u>。



#### 4.What do you like about your work?(高频)

A: The best part about my work is my coworkers. I really missed <u>being together in person every day</u> <u>during COVID</u>. Now that we're back in the office, I always look forward to seeing my colleagues every morning.

## 你喜欢你的工作吗?

A: 我工作中最棒的部分是我的同事们。<u>在新冠期间,我真的很想念每天都在一起的时光。</u>现在我们回到 了办公室,我每天早上都期待着见到我的同事。

**B**:除了薪水,<u>福利是我工作最好的部分</u>。我很幸运<u>能有全面的医疗和牙科保险</u>。此外,我的雇主提供丰厚的养老金,<u>以及相匹配的退休金</u>。这是一家很棒的公司。

# 5. What do you need to do your work better?(高频)

A: To improve my work I would need more flexibility. I wish I could <u>work from home</u> or work remotely so that I could travel more. Plus, I know I would be more productive from elsewhere, while having the freedom to <u>do things on my own terms</u>.

**B:** One major problem at my workplace is all of the long, pointless meetings. The management wants to involve everyone in every meeting, and <u>it's a total waste of time</u> for 90% of us. I usually just <u>end up zoning</u> <u>out</u> when I could be getting my work done.

## 你需要怎样才能把工作干得更好?

A:为了改进我的工作,我需要更多的灵活性。我希望我能<u>在家工作</u>或远程工作,这样我就可以有更多的 旅行。另外我知道我在其他地方会更有效率,同时也可以<u>自由地按照自己的意愿做事。</u>

**B**: 我公司的一个主要问题是那些冗长而毫无意义的会议。管理层希望每个人都能参加每次会议,这对我们 90% 的人来说<u>完全是浪费时间</u>。在我本可以完成工作的时候,我<u>通常都是在走神</u>。

## 6. How much time do you spend working every week? (高频)

A: I <u>work a typical nine-to-five schedule</u>, five days a week, which adds up to about forty to fifty hours per week. However, when the company has heavy workloads, I sometimes have to <u>put in extra hours and</u> <u>work overtime</u>. So it's not uncommon to work sixty hours per week.

**B:** I'm self-employed, so that means <u>I can work as much or as little as I want</u>. I have <u>a few different side-hustles</u>, so sometimes there's lots of work to do, and sometimes ther's not much! I love the flexibility and freedom that comes with being self-employed. ご薙怨し寸過鍋匋賓店舖屬創。

## 你每周花多少时间工作?

A: <u>我的工作是典型的朝九晚五</u>,每周工作五天,每周加起来大约 40 到 50 个小时。然而,当公司工作量 大的时候,<u>我有时不得不加班</u>。所以每周工作 60 个小时很常见。

**B**: 我是个体户,这意味着<u>我可以想干多少就干多少</u>。<u>我有几个不同的副业</u>,所以有时有很多工作要做, 有时没有太多。我喜欢自由职业者的灵活和自由。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



# Topic 3 Home(the area you live in)

本主题每个人情况不同,如有需要,可私信 Penny 根据个人情况做内容的免费私人订制。

# 1. Where are you living at the moment? / Please describe the place where you live. (高频)

I live in the quieter part of a big city. <u>Meaning</u> I can take transit downtown very easily but <u>all the hustle</u> <u>and bustle isn't part of my normal day to day</u>. There are lots of grade schools and bakeries in my neighborhood. And a lot of families live here too. <sup>o</sup> 推認鍋過過續主店舖...原创

## 你现在住在哪里?/请描述一下你居住的地方。

我住在一个大城市中较安静的地方。<u>也就是说</u>我乘坐交通工具去市区很容易,但<u>我的日常生活中并不存</u> 在熙熙攘攘的喧闹。我们家附近有很多小学和面包店。很多家庭也都居住在这里。

# 2. What do you like about the area where you live now? /Do you like the area that you live in?(高频)

A: Yes, I do. It's a great neighborhood to live in. I can't even imagine moving to other places. <u>There're</u> so many perks of the area, like awesome restaurants and all kinds of shops nearby. Besides I love the beautiful park <u>within walking distance</u>. I'm glad I get to live there

**B:** No, I don't really like the neighborhood where I live. The noise of the streets nearby is almost constant. And in the evening, there are often many old people square dancing next to our building <u>with loud and cheesy music</u>. I really want to move sometimes.

# 你喜欢你现居地的哪些地方? /你喜欢你住的地方吗?

A:是的,我喜欢。这是一个非常适合居住的社区。我甚至无法想象搬到其他地方。这个社区有很多福利, 比如很棒的餐馆和附近各种各样的商店。此外,我喜欢<u>步行就可以到达的</u>美丽的公园。我很高兴能住在 这里。

**B**:不,我不太喜欢我住的那个社区。附近街道上的噪音几乎是持续不断的。在晚上经常有许多老年人在我们的居民楼旁边跳广场舞,同时<u>放着吵闹又俗气的音乐</u>。有时候我真的很想搬家。

# 3. Have you lived in your area for a long time?(高频)

A: Yes, I've been living there my whole life. I grew up in the neighborhood. So, <u>I'm used to everything</u> <u>about</u> this residential area and I also know a lot of neighbors. Even though the neighborhood is a little <u>outdated</u>, I can't imagine moving out to other places. 《雅諰過丹過每寶店舖讓創》

**B:** Well, it's been quite a while since I'm a university student living on campus. <u>Come to think of it</u>, I've been living in the student residence for almost 4 years. So I've become very familiar with the surroundings of my school. 你在你住的地方住很久了吗?

A:是的,我在这里住了一辈子。我在这个社区长大。所以,<u>我已经习惯了这个住宅区的一切</u>,我也认识 很多邻居。虽然这个社区有点<u>老旧</u>,但我无法想象搬到其他地方去。

**B**: 我这个大学生<u>已经住在校园里一段时间</u>了。<u>仔细想想</u>,我已经在学生宿舍住了快4年了。所以我对学校周围的环境非常熟悉。

<mark>见下页</mark>



#### 4. Would you like to see any changes in the area you live?(高频)

**A:** Yes, I would. I think the neighborhood committee should <u>step up and take some measures</u> to limit the noise at night. Some old people love square dancing at night with very loud music. It's very <u>irritating</u> and should be the top priority for neighborhood changes.

B: Oh, sorry <u>I can't really think of anything</u> in the neighborhood that should be changed. It's a really cozy and convenient place to live. If I had to change something, I think <u>some dog owners should be better at picking up their dogs' poop</u>. That's it. ご薙總に寸過饋甸實店舖屬創

#### 你想看到你住的地方有什么变化吗?

A:是的,我会的。我认为居委会应该<u>采取一些措施</u>来限制夜间的噪音。有些老人喜欢在晚上放着很吵的 音 乐 跳 广 场 舞 。 这 非 常 让 人 气 愤 , 这 应 该 成 为 这 个 社 区 改 革 的 主 要 任 务 。 B: 哦,对不起,<u>我实在想不出这个社区有什么需要改变的</u>。这是一个非常舒适和方便的社区。如果必须 改变一些东西,我认为一些狗主人应该勤快一些捡他们狗狗的粪便。

#### 5. Do you know any famous people in your area?

A: Yes, I think I know one. <u>A young girl in the high-rise next to mine</u> is a professional TikToker. I often see her <u>shooting dance videos</u> at the recreational space nearby. She has over a hundred thousand followers on TikTok. So I think she can be considered an internet celebrity. *新*魏西西編編官論原創

**B:** No, I don't know any famous people who live near me. It would be so cool to live near a celebrity. But <u>as far as I know</u>, there aren't any famous people around me. I'll have to <u>keep an eye out</u> though. I would definitely love to hang out with a celebrity

#### 你认识你所在地区的名人吗?

A: 是的,我知道一个。<u>我旁边住高层的一个年轻女孩</u>是个专业的 TikToker。我经常看到她在附近的娱乐 场所<u>拍摄舞蹈视频</u>。她在抖音上有超过 10 万的粉丝,所以我认为她是一名网红。

**B**:不,我不知道住在我附近的名人。住在名人身边真是太酷了。但据我所知,我周围并没有任何名人。 不过<u>我得留意一下</u>,我喜欢和名人一起出去玩。



# Topic 4 Hometown (含 the city you live in)

本主题每个人情况不同,如有需要,可私信 Penny 根据个人情况做内容的免费私人订制。

# 1. Do you come from a city/town or village? (9月新增高频)

Well, my hometown is Jinan, which is a city in Shandong province. I really love it because there're tons of amazing attractions in the inner-city, and people living in Jinan are very warm and friendly.

# 你来自城市、城镇还是乡村?

我的家乡是济南,济南是山东省的一个城市。我真的很喜欢这座城市,因为在<u>市中心</u>有很多叹为 观止的景点,济南的人们都非常热情友好。

# 2. Is that a big city or a small place? (高频)

A: I come from a small town. I'm not sure how many people live there, but you can pretty much <u>drive</u> <u>through the entire place</u> in just over two hours. Although it's not a big town, <u>it has rich tourism resources</u>, making it a worthwhile destination to visit.

**B:** My hometown isn't a <u>major city</u> in China but it's not small either. As far as I know, it has <u>a population</u> <u>of 5 million people</u>. So the urban area is always crowded with people. It's also the largest city of the province <u>by land area</u>. ご雍偲通歸通句 ( 實店鋪帳創)

# 那是一个大城市还是一个小地方?

A:我来自一个小镇。我不确定有多少人住在那里,但你几乎可以在两个多小时内<u>开车穿过整个</u> <u>城市</u>。虽然它不是一个大城市,但<u>它有丰富的旅游资源</u>,是一个值得参观的地方。

B: 在中国,我的家乡不是一个<u>大城市</u>,但它也不小。据我所知,这座城市有 <u>500 万人口</u>,所以 市区总是挤满了人。它也是全省土地面积最大的城市。雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创

# 3. How long have you lived there?(高频)

A: <u>I've been living in my hometown since I was born</u>. I've never thought about leaving my hometown because <u>my entire social circle</u> is there and the cost of living is pretty low. However, I also want to work in a different city for a few years to <u>broaden my horizons</u>

**B:** I've been living in this city since I started college. So, it's been almost four years now, and I'm just about to graduate. <u>Can't believe how time flies</u>!

# 你在那里住了多久了?

A: <u>我从出生起就一直住在我的家乡</u>。我从来没有想过离开我的家乡,因为<u>我的整个社交圈</u>都在 那里,这里的生活成本也很低。然而,我也想在另一个城市工作几年来开拓我的视野。

**B**: 我从开始上大学就一直住在这个城市。到现在快四年了,我就要毕业了。<u>真不敢相信时间过</u> <u>得这么快</u>。

# <mark>见下页</mark>



# 4. What do you like about your home city/town/village? (9 月新增高频)

**A:** <u>I really like how much green space there is</u> in my hometown. There are a few different parks where you can go for a nice walk. There are lots of trees and flowers. <u>It's so picturesque</u>. It's also nice to see people <u>spending quality time together</u> in these <u>beautiful outdoor settings</u>.

**B:** I really like the nightlife in the city I'm from. <u>There's always something exciting going on</u>, whether it's live music or a comedy show. <u>In all the time I've lived there, I've never been bored</u>. I think there's an exciting activity to do every weekend no matter how old you are.

# 你喜欢你的家乡(城市/小镇/村庄)的哪些地方?

A: <u>我非常喜欢我家乡的绿地面积,非常大</u>。有几个不同的公园,你可以在那里散步。公园里也有很多树木和花草,风景如画。在这些<u>美丽的户外环境</u>中看到人们<u>共度美好时光</u>也很不错。
B: 我特别喜欢我们城市的夜生活。<u>那里总是有令人兴奋的活动在进行</u>,无论是现场音乐还是喜剧表演。<u>在我住那里的所有时间里,我从来都没有感到过无聊</u>。我认为无论你多大年龄,每个周期表演。

末都有令人兴奋的活动可以参加。₀₀---→ 薙諰過過過綯實扂舖壙劍+

# 5. Is your home city/town/village a good place for young people? (9 月新增高频)

A: My hometown is definitely a good place for young people. There's <u>a good variety of</u> restaurants, bars, and other fun places. But it's <u>not an excessively large city</u>, which means it's easy to <u>connect with people</u> <u>and get to know them</u>. I find that really big cities can be too overwhelming for young people.

B: My hometown is alright for young people. There are lots of things to do around there, including a good variety of restaurants and bars. But there aren't as many job opportunities as young people might hope for. So a lot of them end up leaving for work in bigger cities.

# 你的家乡(城市/小镇/村庄)是否适合年轻人?

A: 我的家乡绝对是一个适合年轻人的好地方。那里有<u>各种各样的</u>餐馆、酒吧和其他有趣的地方。 不过它<u>不是一个特别大的城市</u>,这意味着很容易<u>与人们建立联系并了解他们</u>。我觉得对年轻人来 说,非常大的城市可能会太过于压抑。

**B**: 我家乡<u>对年轻人来说还可以</u>。那里有很多事情可做,包括各种各样的餐馆和酒吧。但工作机 会没有年轻人所期望的那么多。因此,许多年轻人<u>最终会去更大的城市工作</u>。



# Topic 5 Geography(新题)

## 1. Did you like learning geography? (高频)

A: Yes, in high school, my favorite subject was geography. Our teacher taught us a lot about different places and environments. I also <u>gained an understanding of the interconnectedness between people and the environment</u>, which <u>I found very relevant to everyday life</u>. You know, it's valuable information to have, especially if you care about climate change. I thought it was a cool topic.

**B:** No, I studied geography in middle school, and <u>I must admit, I didn't find it particularly engaging</u>. I especially hated having to learn about <u>the layers of the Earth and things like that</u>. Honestly, I don't think it's information that I really need to have in my everyday life. <u>Back then</u>, I was more interested in music and art classes.

## 你喜欢学地理吗?

A: 喜欢啊,我高中时最喜欢的就是地理。老师给我们介绍了很多不同的地方和环境。我还了解 到<u>人和环境之间的关系</u>,这<u>跟日常生活真的很有关系</u>。这是非常有价值的知识,尤其是对于关心 气候变化的人来说。我觉得这个话题很酷。

**B**: 不太喜欢,我初中学的地理,<u>说实话,我不觉得很有趣</u>。尤其是<u>学地球的层次啥的</u>,觉得那都不是日常生活中需要的。<u>那时候</u>我更喜欢音乐和艺术课。一点瘫痪告告上寸绚个店舖墨剑

## 2. Is what you learned in geography very useful to you now? (高频)

**A:** Yes, I definitely think geography is useful. It teaches you about the impact that people have on the environment. It also shows how the environment can influence culture and society. So if you have that knowledge, then you can learn how to interact with the environment in a positive way.

**B:** No, I don't think geography is that useful, at least not in my daily life. I mean, I learned how to tell directions back in middle school, but <u>I still can't tell north from south or any of that</u>. The funny thing is, it's never gotten me lost, so <u>I don't really see the big deal about</u> knowing geography.

# 你觉得学过的地理对你现在有用吗?

A: 当然有用。它让你知道人类对环境的影响,也反映了环境如何影响文化和社会。有了这些知识,你就可以知道<u>如何更好地与环境互动</u>。

B: 其实我不觉得地理有多大用处,至少对我日常生活来说。我初中学过识别方向,但<u>我现在还</u> <u>是分不清东西南北</u>。但有意思的是,我从没因为这个迷路过,所以觉得学地理<u>也没那么重要</u>。 见下页



#### 3. Would you like to be a geography teacher? (高频)

A: Yes, when I was in high school, my favorite subject was geography, and <u>I was totally set on</u> becoming a geography teacher someday. <u>I thought it'd be super cool to</u> show kids all the amazing places around the globe they'd never been to. But, sadly, my grades in geography <u>weren't that great</u>, so I didn't choose to major in it when I went to college.

B: No, geography <u>has never been a passion of mine</u>. If I were to become a teacher, I would like to be a gym teacher. <u>I've been a fitness freak my whole life</u>, so teaching children about fitness would make me happy. Besides, gym teachers don't usually give homework, so <u>there would be less marking to do</u>. 000 雜 處過過過過有店補原創3

#### 你想当地理老师吗?

A: 以前高中的时候,我很喜欢地理课。当时<u>我就下定决心</u>要当地理老师。我觉得给孩子们展示他们从未去过的世界各地<u>是很酷的一件事</u>。但可惜,我地理成绩没有很好,所以大学的时候没选 这个专业。

**B**: 地理<u>从来都不是我所感兴趣的科目</u>。要是我做老师,我想当体育老师。<u>我一直都很喜欢健身</u>, 所以教孩子们健身我会很开心。而且,体育老师通常不布置作业,所以<u>我也不用批改很多(没有</u> 很多课后工作需要做)。

## 4. Are you interested in finding out more about the geography of other countries? (高频)

A: Yeah, I have a genuine passion for exploring the geography of other countries, which is closely related to my love for travel. Knowing about the land, weather, and culture of the places I visit enhances my travel experience. For example, if I'm more knowledgeable about <u>arid deserts</u>, I can better prepare for trips to such locations, making my journeys more enjoyable and meaningful.

**B:** To be honest, I <u>haven't really gotten into learning about</u> the geography of other countries. I<u>t just seems</u> too distant from my daily life. For example, knowing the climate or environment elsewhere doesn't influence my day-to-day choices, like what to wear. Instead, I'm more fascinated by <u>the income levels of people in those countries</u>.

## 你对其他国家的地理感兴趣吗?

A: 当然,<u>我真的很喜欢</u>了解其他国家的地理,<u>这和我喜欢旅游有关</u>。了解我旅行地的地理、气候和文化会让我的旅行更有意义。比如,对<u>干旱沙漠</u>的情况了解的更多,我就能更好地准备,让旅行更加愉快。

**B**: 说实话,我对其他国家的地理<u>不太感兴趣。那感觉跟我日常生活没啥关系</u>,比如别的地方的 气候和环境不会影响我每天穿什么。相反,我更想知道<u>那些国家人们的收入水平</u>。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### Topic 6 Fishing (新题)

#### 1. Is fishing popular in your country? (高频)

**A:** Yes, many people in my country are into fishing. You can see people fishing at <u>pretty much any body</u> <u>of water you visit</u>. There's a river in my city that people fish in, which always <u>throws me off guard</u>. I can't believe there are fish around here! <u>Overall, though, it's nice to see</u>. Fishing is a very relaxing activity.

**B:** No, I don't think many people are really into fishing. It's mostly because fishing can be <u>pretty dull</u>. I mean, you're just sitting in one spot, waiting for the fish to bite, and <u>that's not everyone's idea of a good</u> <u>time</u>. Actually, when people are out on the water, they prefer things like boating and having fun instead of fishing.  $\infty \rightarrow \#$ 

#### 在你们国家钓鱼受欢迎吗?

A: 受欢迎啊,我们国家有很多人喜欢钓鱼。你去哪里的水域都能看到人在钓鱼。我城市里有条河,经常有人在那儿钓鱼,我每次都<u>觉得好惊讶</u>。那里怎么可能有鱼呢!但总的来说,我还是挺喜欢看的。钓鱼是个很放松的活动。

**B:** 我不觉得人们喜欢钓鱼。可能因为钓鱼<u>有点无聊</u>。你就坐在那儿,等鱼上钩,<u>不是每个人都觉得这好</u> <u>玩</u>。实际上,很多人在水上都喜欢玩儿其他的,比如划船啥的,不太钓鱼。

#### 2. How do you feel about eating fish? (高频)

A: <u>When it comes to meat, I'm all about fish.</u> It's less likely to make you put on weight. I personally love grilled fish. It tastes amazing. Some people also like steamed fish or pan-fried fish. Any way you cook it, fish is <u>a nice, light meal that leaves you satisfied</u>. I really enjoy eating it.

**B:** I don't like eating fish. <u>I'm not sure what it is about fish</u>. Maybe it's the smell or the texture. But <u>it</u> really turns me off. I've had fish prepared a few different ways. But each time, I feel grossed out. It's just really <u>not my cup of tea</u>.

你觉得吃鱼怎么样?

A: <u>对我来说,说到肉,我最爱的就是鱼了</u>。它不容易让你长胖。我个人特别喜欢烤鱼,味道超棒。有些 人也喜欢蒸鱼或煎鱼。不管你怎么烹饪,鱼都是<u>一道清淡又美味的菜,让人吃了很满足</u>。我真的很喜欢 吃鱼。

**B**: 我不太喜欢吃鱼。<u>不知道为什么</u>,可能是味道或者口感吧。但<u>我就是不喜欢</u>。我试过好几种做法,但 每次吃都觉得不舒服。<u>真的不是我的菜</u>。



## 3. Have you ever visited a place where you saw lots of fish? (高频)

**A:** Yes, last summer, me and my friends were <u>hanging out by the river</u>. On one of our <u>canoe trips</u>, we saw a ton of fish around us. They were just swimming peacefully. One of my friends tried to touch one and fell out of the canoe! It was so funny.

**B:** No, I haven't been to a place with lots of fish around. There aren't many rivers or lakes around me. So I can't think of anywhere that has a ton of fish. Honestly, fish kind of <u>freak me out</u>. They move so fast and they look so weird! <u>I'm not a big fan</u>.

#### 你去过有很多鱼的地方吗?

A: 去过,去年夏天,我和朋友们<u>在河边玩</u>。我们<u>划独木舟</u>的时候,看到周围有好多鱼。它们都在那儿悠 哉游哉的。我朋友还想摸一下,结果摔到水里了!真的超搞笑。

B: 我没去过鱼很多的地方。我们这儿附近没有多少河流或湖泊。所以我想不出哪里有很多鱼。说实话, 我觉得鱼<u>有点吓人</u>。它们游得太快,长得也奇奇怪怪的。<u>我不太喜欢</u>。

#### 4. Would you ever watch a TV program or film about fish? (高频)

Yes: Yes, I watched a documentary on <u>the Great Barrier Reef</u> once. It's the famous coral reef in Australia. It was really cool to learn about how many kinds of fish <u>use the coral reef as their home</u>. They were all so bright and colourful. The documentary really made me appreciate nature.

No: No, I haven't seen any movies with a bunch of fish. Honestly, I've always found <u>the way fish look</u> to be kind of strange, and some of them can even <u>give me the creeps</u>. So, <u>I'm not really into stuff about</u> the ocean. That's why I can't really think of any movies that focus on fish.

## 你会看关于鱼的电视节目或电影吗?

A: 我看过一个关于<u>大堡礁</u>的纪录片,那是澳大利亚有名的珊瑚礁。很酷,我了解到有很多种鱼<u>都住在那</u>珊瑚礁里。它们的颜色都很亮,很漂亮。看了那个纪录片,我更加珍惜大自然了。

**B:** 我没看过啥都是鱼的电影。说真的,我觉得<u>鱼的样子看起来</u>很奇怪,有些<u>还挺吓人的</u>。所以,我<u>不太</u> <u>对海洋里的东西感兴趣</u>。这就是为什么我真的想不出有啥电影是关于鱼的。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



## Topic 7 Helping others(新题)

# 1. What kind of help do you give to other people? (高频)

**A:** I'm the type who likes to offer help before people even ask for it. For example, if a neighbor <u>has their</u> <u>hands full</u> and can't open the door, I'll <u>step in without hesitation to give them a hand</u>. I don't wait for them to ask for help because that might <u>seem a bit distant or uncaring</u>.

**B:** I usually help people by <u>running errands for them</u>. If my friend <u>is overwhelmed with work</u>, I get groceries for them and cook so they can enjoy a nice meal. I also help them by giving them advice. Lots of my friends have asked for my opinion. It helps them make tough decisions.

# 你通常怎么帮助别人?

A: 我是那种喜欢在别人开口前就提供帮助的人。比如说,如果邻居<u>手上拿满东西</u>,开不了门, 我就<u>会立刻去帮忙</u>,不用等他们开口。因为等到别人求助可能就显得有点疏远了。

**B**: 我经常帮忙<u>为了琐事跑跑腿</u>。如果我的朋友<u>工作忙得不行</u>,我就会帮他们买菜然后做饭。我 也会给他们建议。有很多朋友都问我看法,这可以帮助他们针对一些很难的事情做出决定。

# 2. Did your family encourage you to be helpful when you were a child? (高频)

A: Yes, absolutely. From a young age, I was taught that helping others is an important part of life. My mom used to say that we can't just think about ourselves as we live. When you help others, <u>it often leads</u> to them helping you in return. I think <u>I've been doing well in following this idea</u>.

**B:** My parents <u>didn't really teach me</u> how to help others. They were very busy <u>keeping our family afloat</u>. So they didn't have time to focus on helping others. But they have always encouraged me to be kind. I think that helping others is how you can be kind to them.

# 小时候家里人鼓励你帮助别人吗?

A: 是的,绝对的。我从小就被教育,帮助别人是生活的重要部分。我妈妈常说,我们活着不能 只为自己。当你帮助他人,<u>别人也常常会回报你</u>。我觉得<u>我目前来说还做得不错</u>。

**B**: 我爸妈其实<u>没怎么教我</u>帮助别人。他们那时候太忙于<u>维持家计</u>了。所以没时间去关心外界。 但是,他们总是鼓励我做个善良的人。我觉得,帮助别人就是表现善良。

# 3. Do you like to help people? (高频)

**B:** I'm happy to help people, except for those who don't appreciate it. After hanging out for a while, you realize that some people don't express thanks when you help them. <u>They act like they deserve the help</u>. So, if these people <u>hit a rough patch and I could step in</u>, I'm sorry, but I might not help them.

# 你喜欢帮助别人吗?

A: 喜欢,我总是尽可能地帮助别人。<u>当你能帮忙时,你就应该伸出援手</u>。这样你才能支持到你周围的人,<u>彼此关系更紧密</u>。而且,帮助别人感觉很好,这可以让你不那么过度关注自己。
B: 我愿意帮助他人,但不喜欢帮那些不懂得感激的人。你和人交往久了,就会发现有的人你帮了他们,他们都不说谢谢,他们觉得那是他们应得的。对这种人,如果他们遇到困难,即使我能

<u>帮</u>,我可能都不会帮。<mark>见下页</mark>



#### 4. When was the last time someone helped you? (高频)

**A:** I recently bought a large storage container at a shop about a kilometer away from my house. I tried to carry it home on foot, but <u>I was struggling</u>. Luckily, a food delivery driver noticed me and offered to take me and the container in his car. I offered him a tip for the ride, but he refused. <u>It made my day!</u>

**B:** I recently moved to a new apartment and <u>enlisted the help of my family and friends to help me</u> with moving boxes. One of my friends even has a pickup truck that we were able to borrow. Doing all of that work myself would have been impossible, so I'm very grateful to have amazing friends who <u>lent a helping hand</u>.

## 你上次被人帮助是什么时候?

A: 最近我在一个店买了一个很大的储物盒,距离我家大约一公里。我试着步行带它回家,<u>但很费劲</u>。幸运的是,一个送餐司机看到了我,主动提议载我一程。我想给他小费,但他拒绝了。<u>那</u>天真的让我很开心!

**B**: 我最近搬到了一个新公寓,搬家时候<u>得到了家人和朋友的帮助</u>。其中一个朋友甚至有一辆皮 卡车,我们就借来用了。如果只有我自己,我根本做不到,所以我真的很感激那些<u>伸出援手的</u>朋 友。

## 5. What have you done to help the elderly?

A: I often <u>help my grandparents with errands</u>. They don't always have the energy to go grocery shopping. So I help them out by <u>picking up ingredients for them</u>. They just give me a list and I get them whatever they need. Honestly, I'm happy to do it. It's important to support the elderly in any way we can.

**B:** I've helped my parents and elderly neighbors <u>by giving them tech support</u> since many of them have difficulty using cellphones and computers. They find modern devices confusing, so they ask me for help. <u>I don't mind volunteering my time and skills</u>. It's nice to help them out.

## 你做过哪些帮助过老年人的事?

A: 我经常<u>帮我的爷爷奶奶为琐事跑腿</u>。他们有时候没那么多精力去买菜,我就会去<u>帮他们挑选</u> <u>食材</u>。他们会给我一个清单,我按他们要求的去买。说真的,我很愿意这么做。我们应该尽可能 帮助老年人。

B: 我帮父母和一些上了年纪的邻居提供技术和设备方面的帮助,因为他们在用手机和电脑的时候经常有问题。他们觉得现代的设备很复杂,所以找我帮忙。<u>我不介意贡献出我的时间和技能</u>。 这样能帮助到他们,感觉真的挺好的。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### Topic 8 Gifts(新题)

#### 1. Have you ever received a really good present? (高频)

A: Yes, I've received a great gift before. I once had a friend make me a sweater. It was honestly so thoughtful. They embroidered my favourite flower on it, which was really sweet. <u>It must've taken them so much time!</u> <u>I felt very</u> <u>loved</u> when I got it from them.

**B:** I think the greatest gift I ever got was <u>a high- end watch</u>. My parents bought it for me when I graduated university. They knew <u>how hard I'd worked to get to that point</u> and they wanted to show how proud they were. I was so touched when they gave it to me. I wear that watch every day.

#### 你收到过的好礼物吗?

A: 有,我以前收到过一个很棒的礼物。我有一个朋友为我手工制作了一件毛衣。这真的很有心思。他在 上面绣了我最喜欢的花,真的很贴心。<u>他一定花了很多时间来做!</u>当我收到它时,我真的<u>有感到爱</u>。

**B**: 我认为我收到的最好的礼物是<u>一块高档手表。</u>我大学毕业时,我的父母为我买了它。他们知道<u>我为了</u> <u>毕业付出了多大的努力</u>,他们想表示他们为此感到骄傲。当他们送给我时,我真的很感动。现在我每天 都戴着那块手表。

#### 2. Are you good at choosing presents for others? (高频)

A: I think I'm pretty good at choosing gifts. The main thing is to choose something that <u>speaks to the person's</u> <u>specific interests and hobbies</u>. Giving them something basic like a candle or a mug isn't that special. But if you give them something that shows you pay attention to what they like, then <u>it makes for a great gift</u>.

**B:** <u>I'm not that great at choosing gifts</u>. I have a terrible memory, so it's hard for me to remember what people like and dislike. I usually get them something safe but basic, like a candle or a mug. It's also easy to get someone a gift card so they can choose what to buy for themselves.

#### 你擅长为他人选择礼物吗?

A: 是的,我觉得我挺擅长选择礼物的。最重要的是<u>选择一些能与该人的特定兴趣和爱好产生共鸣的东西</u>。 送他们像蜡烛或马克杯这样的基本东西并不特别。但是,如果你送他们的东西显示出你有注意到他们喜 欢的东西,那么<u>它会是一个很好的礼物</u>。

**B**: <u>我并不擅长</u>挑选礼物。我记性很差,所以很难记住人们喜欢和不喜欢的东西。我通常会<u>买一些安全但</u> <u>基础的东西给他们</u>,比如蜡烛或马克杯。送他们礼品卡,让他们自己选择想买的东西也是一个好办法。



#### 3. What kind of present would you buy for your friends?(高频)

**A:** I usually pick gifts based on what people actually need. Things like mugs or notebooks <u>can be kinda</u> <u>dull</u> and not really what someone wants as a gift. So, I try to figure out what they really could use. Like, my friend needed a hair dryer recently, so I got her one for her birthday. <u>She was totally stoked about it</u>.

**B:** I usually go for fancier and somewhat pricier gifts when giving to others. For example, a <u>well-designed</u> branded T-shirt or a beautiful European-style teapot that <u>could be a collectible</u>. I think things from fancy brands often have unique designs and <u>are more likely to bring joy to the person receiving the gift</u>.

#### 你会为朋友买什么样的礼物?

A: 我通常根据人们真正需要的东西来挑选礼物。像马克杯或笔记本这样的东西可能<u>有点乏味</u>,不是某人 想要的礼物。所以,我尝试弄清楚他们真正需要什么。比如,我的朋友最近需要一个吹风机,所以我在 她生日时买了一个给她。她真的很开心。

**B:** 我通常会选择更高档一些、价格稍高的礼物送给他人。例如,<u>设计精美的品牌</u>T恤,或者<u>可以收藏的</u> 欧洲风格的美丽茶壶。我认为名牌的东西往往设计独特,<u>更有可能给收礼物的人带来喜悦</u>。

#### 4. Have you ever given someone a present that you made yourself? (高频)

**B:** No, I've never sent handmade gifts before. <u>I'm not a very crafty person</u>. I don't know how to make gifts by myself. So I usually just <u>get people store-bought gifts</u>. They may not be as personal. But at least I know they'll be high quality. People usually enjoy what I get them.

## 你有没有给某人送过自己制作的礼物?

A: 是的,我送过手工制作的礼物给别人。我真的很喜欢编织。所以我为我的家人和朋友编织了帽子和围 巾。他们总是喜欢收到这些手工制品,因为他们感觉很特别。<u>他们知道我投入了多少时间和精力。这使</u> <u>得礼物更加出众</u>。

B: 不,我之前没有送过手工制作的礼物。<u>我并不是一个非常善于手工的人</u>。我不知道如何自己制作礼物。 所以我通常<u>只是买店里能买到的礼物</u>给人们。它们可能不是那么私人化。但至少我知道它们质量很高。 人们通常都喜欢我送给他们的东西。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



Topic 9 Musical instrument (新题)

#### 1. Do you know how to play any musical instruments? (高频)

**A:** No, I've never learned to play a musical instrument. <u>It's been a goal of mine for a while</u>, but I've just never found the time. <u>I always have a lot on my plate</u>. But if I had the chance, I'd love to learn how to play guitar. It's a fun instrument and it doesn't look that hard to play.

**B:** Yes, I know how to play a couple different instruments. I can play both the guitar and the ukulele. They're pretty similar to each other. The guitar just has more <u>strings</u>. But <u>the basic concept is the same</u>. I'd love to learn how to play piano as well. I think it's a really cool instrument.

#### 你会弹奏任何乐器吗?

A: 不,我从没学过。<u>我一直想学(是我的一个目标)</u>,但就是没时间。<u>我总是很忙</u>。但如果有 机会,我会喜欢学吉他。它看起来很好玩,也不是很难。

B: 是的,我会弹几种乐器,吉他和尤克里里。这两者很像,吉他就是多了几根<u>弦</u>,但基本概念
 是一样的。我还想学钢琴,觉得它很酷。

#### 2. Have you learned about music at school? (高频)

**A:** Yes, I have been lucky enough to study music from kindergarten through high school. In these music classes, I picked up various skills like <u>reading sheet music</u>, singing, and even trying out different musical instruments. <u>One special memory I have is</u> when my middle school music teacher taught us how to play the flute, which was <u>truly an enriching experience</u>.

**B:** <u>Back in school</u>, I didn't have many opportunities to learn about music. The primary reason was that <u>my school prioritized traditional subjects like</u> Chinese, Math, and English, so they often <u>pushed music</u> <u>classes aside to make space for</u> those fundamental subjects. This was somewhat disappointing, as I've always found music to be both captivating and <u>soothing</u>.

#### 你在学校学过音乐吗?

A: 是的,我从幼儿园到高中都学过。在音乐课上,我学了<u>如何看乐谱</u>、唱歌和尝试不同的乐器。 我印象最深的是上中学时,老师教我们吹笛子,那是很有意思的体验。

B: 我<u>以前</u>在学校没有学过音乐。因为<u>学校更看重传统基础科目</u>,所以音乐课<u>常被放到一边,为</u> 那些更重要的基础课程腾空间(被其他课占了)。这让人很失望,因为我一直觉得音乐很吸引人, 并且可以让人心情很放松很平静。



# 3. Do you think all children should have music lessons at school? (高频)

A: Yes, it's important for schools to expose students to all kinds of skills so they can find out what they are passionate about. <u>How else will they find their destiny?</u> For example, imagine Yo-Yo Ma had never taken a music class. <u>The world would have missed out on all his beautiful music</u>, and he might be stuck in an unfulfilling job.

**B:** No, music is not for everyone, and children shouldn't be forced to take part in activities that don't inspire them. <u>Unlike math for example</u>, music isn't necessary to someone's success in society and most jobs don't require music knowledge. It's better to <u>give students elective subjects</u> where they can choose whatever they are interested in.

# 你认为所有的孩子在学校都应该上音乐课吗?

A: 是的,学校应该教孩子们各种技能来让他们发现自己真正热爱的东西。<u>不然他们怎么知道自己喜欢什么</u>?比如,如果马友友从未上过音乐课,<u>世界就会错过他的美妙音乐</u>,他也困难困在一个自己不喜欢的工作中。

**B**:不,不是所有人都喜欢音乐。不应该强迫孩子们做他们不感兴趣的事。比如,与数学不同, 音乐不是一个人在社会上取得成功必须要具备的条件,大部分工作也不需要音乐知识。我觉得最 好是让学生们选择他们感兴趣的科目去学习。

# 4. Do you think it is easy to learn to play a musical instrument? (高频)

A: Yes, just like learning anything else, you start with the basics when learning to play an instrument. However, there are some instruments that are more difficult than others. For example, <u>the harmonica is</u> <u>pretty straightforward and intuitive</u> while the violin is <u>notoriously</u> difficult to grasp. <u>That being said</u>, if you find an instrument you love, sticking with it will be easier.

**B:** No, playing an instrument well is a skill that takes years to master. Just learning to read music is almost like learning a language. It requires rhythm, timing, and intuition. <u>On top of that</u>, you'll need to <u>build</u> <u>muscles and breathwork specific to your instrument</u>, and develop your own style. Learning an instrument is something that <u>definitely doesn't happen overnight</u>.

# 你认为学习弹奏乐器容易吗?

A: 是的,就像学习任何东西一样,在学习一门乐器时,你都是要从基础开始。但有些乐器比其他的难,比如<u>口琴学起来相对简单,看上去很直观知道该怎么做</u>,但小提琴就是<u>出了名的</u>难掌握。 <u>话虽如此</u>,如果你喜欢,坚持下去就会变得容易很多。

B:不,精通一种乐器需要多年的努力。就读乐谱这一点,都跟学新语言差不多。你得有节奏感、 要对时间把握得当,还得有直觉(有感觉)。<u>除此之外</u>,你还得<u>锻炼特定的肌肉,学会乐器的呼</u> <u>吸技巧</u>,并培养形成自己的风格。学习乐器绝对不是<u>一蹴而就</u>的。

# <mark>见下页</mark>



# 5. What musical instruments do you like listening to most? Why?

A: I really like listening to the piano. It's so soothing. Whenever I listen to someone play the piano, <u>I feel</u> <u>like I'm truly at peace</u>. <u>The warm tones of the keys are so pleasing to the ear</u>. Plus, there's a lot of complexity with the chords. So it's also interesting to listen to.

**B:** I love listening to the violin. Some people think that <u>string instruments</u> are boring. But to me, they're the prettiest instruments in the world. <u>Violins have a lovely sound to them</u>. It always makes me relaxed when I listen to someone playing the violin. <u>I love how rich the music from them is</u>.

# 你最喜欢听什么乐器?为什么?

A: 我真的很喜欢听钢琴。那声音特别舒缓。每次听到有人弹琴,<u>我都觉得特别放松。琴键柔和</u>的音色特别好听。而且,和弦的变化也很有深度,所以听起来很有趣。

B: 我超喜欢听小提琴。有的人觉得<u>弦乐器</u>很无聊。但对我来说,它们是世界上最好听的乐器。 小提琴的音色很美。每次听到有人拉小提琴,我都觉得很放松。<u>我很喜欢小提琴传递出的有层次</u> 感的音乐。

## 6. Do you think music education is important to children?

**A:** I think teaching kids music is important. Music <u>activates certain parts of their brain</u> and can improve their mental health. So <u>from that standpoint</u>, it's great for their well-being. Music also helps kids express themselves and be creative. It's good for them to <u>have an outlet like that</u>.

**B:** <u>I don't think music education is that important</u> for kids. It might be fun for some kids, but stressful for others. If kids don't <u>have a natural aptitude</u> for music, then they might get frustrated by having to learn it. It's more important for them to focus on subjects like science and math. Those subjects are much more useful.

# 你认为音乐教育对孩子重要吗?

A: 我觉得教孩子音乐很重要。音乐<u>会激活他们大脑的某些部分</u>,有助于改善他们的心理健康。 所以<u>从这个角度来看</u>,对他们的健康很有好处。音乐还帮助孩子表达自己,激发创造力。让他们 有这样的宣泄情绪的方式对他们有好处。

**B**: <u>我觉得音乐教育对孩子不是那么重要</u>。对一些孩子来说,可能很有趣,但对其他孩子来说可能很有压力。如果孩子<u>对音乐没有天赋</u>,那么学音乐可能会让他们感到沮丧。对他们来说,更重要的是专注于科学和数学等学科,那些学科更加实用。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### Topic 10 Cinema/Films(新题)

#### 1. What's your favorite kind of film?/What type of movies do you like to watch? (高频)

**A:** I'm generally a fan of action films. You know, I really like exciting movies where there's a lot happening on screen. I love seeing car chase scenes or <u>elaborate fight scenes</u>. <u>It really puts me on the edge of my seat</u>. Plus, big action movies usually <u>have really cool effects</u>.

**B:** I like watching comedies. They might not be as exciting and dramatic as action movies. But they always <u>make me bust a gut</u>. Whenever I'm stressed from work, I just go home and put on a comedy. It helps me relax right away. It's good to watch something that <u>takes your mind off things</u>.

#### 你最喜欢看什么类型的电影?

A: 我更喜欢动作片。就是那种屏幕上东西繁多、超级刺激的电影。特别是追车和<u>打斗场面,每</u>次都让我紧张的坐立难安。而且大制作的动作片通常都有很炫酷的特效。

**B**: 我挺喜欢喜剧片的。可能它们不像动作片那样刺激,但每次看都能<u>让我笑破肚皮</u>。有时候工作压力大的时候,我会回家看部喜剧,一下子就感觉放松了。看这种电影真的能让人心情愉快。

#### 2. Did you often go to the cinema when you were young? (高频)

A: Yes, I went to the cinema plenty of times when I was a kid. My parents liked to <u>make it a family activity</u>. We would go see the latest movie together. Then we would enjoy a nice meal out. We could share our thoughts on the movie. It was a really fun family tradition.

**B:** Well, when I was a kid, I rarely went to the movies. <u>On the rare occasions that I did go</u>, it was usually for a school trip to <u>watch a patriotic film</u>. But we mostly watched movies at home on TV. My dad used to rent DVDs of our favorite movies and watch them on the television.

#### 小时候你经常去电影院吗?

A: 是的,我小时候经常和家人去电影院。我爸妈<u>总是把它当作是家庭活动。我们会一起去看新</u> <u>上映的电影</u>,然后外面吃个好的。吃饭的时候我们会分享对电影的看法,真的是个很好的家庭传统。

B: 其实小时候我很少去电影院。<u>偶尔去也只是</u>学校组织的,大多是去<u>看那种爱国主义的电影</u>。 我们家更多的是在家看电视。我爸经常会租 DVD 回家里看。

#### <mark>见下页</mark>



#### 3. Would you like to make a film yourself one day? (高频)

**A:** I'm definitely interested in the idea of making a movie, but it sounds really hard. Filmmaking involves a lot of different skills like <u>story development</u>, <u>camera work</u>, <u>and editing</u>. Considering I don't have much experience in these areas, I'm not sure if I'll ever make a movie. <u>But never say never</u>; perhaps I'll acquire the necessary skills in the future.

**B:** Yeah, definitely. Making a film seems like <u>an exciting venture</u>. I often find myself inspired by <u>the</u> <u>creativity of regular people who post short films online</u>. These projects are pretty encouraging, and they make me feel like if I could come up with a good story, I'd enjoy <u>turning it into a movie to reach a larger audience</u>.

# 你有没有想过自己拍电影?

A: 我确实对自己拍电影这事挺感兴趣的,但听起来好像很难。拍电影需要掌握好多技能,像是 <u>编剧、摄像,还有剪辑</u>等等。考虑到我这些方面经验都不足,不知道我会不会真的拍。但是<u>话也</u> <u>不能说的太绝对(永远不要说永远)</u>,说不定将来我会掌握这些技能呢。

**B**: 没错,拍电影似乎是一项<u>让人兴奋的冒险</u>。我常常<u>被普通人在网上上传短片的创意所激发</u>。 这些作品相当鼓舞人心,让我觉得如果我有一个好故事,我也可以拍成电影,<u>吸引更多的观众</u>。

## 4. Do you think watching films is a good way to spend time with friends? (高频)

**A:** Yes, going to the movies provides an excellent opportunity to <u>bond with friends</u>. Not only do you get to experience a movie together, but you can also <u>spend some time afterwards exchanging your thoughts</u> <u>and opinions</u>. I always find that I enjoy a movie more when I have my friends with me.

**B:** No, I don't think going to the cinema is a good way to spend time with friends. You just spend a couple hours not talking. <u>You don't even get to catch up with your friends</u> because it's rude to chat during a movie. I think there are better ways to spend quality time with each other.

# 你觉得和朋友一起看电影是不是个不错的消遣方式?

A: 对,和朋友们去看电影是个很好的方式来<u>增进彼此的关系</u>。你不仅可以一起看片,<u>看完后还</u> <u>可以分享各自的看法</u>。和朋友们一起看电影,我总是觉得更加享受。

**B**: 我不太觉得和朋友去电影院是很好的消遣方式。你基本上就是静静地坐了两个小时,<u>甚至没</u> <u>有机会和你的朋友说话</u>,因为看电影时聊天被认为是不礼貌的。我认为有更好的方式来与朋友共 度时光。



# 5. Do you prefer watching movies at home or at the cinema?

**A:** I like watching movies at home. <u>I'm more of an introvert</u>, so it's more comfortable for me to watch a movie from the comfort of my own home. That way, <u>I don't have to deal with noisy crowds</u>. It's also nice to be able to pause the movie whenever you want.

**B:** I prefer watching movies at the cinema. It's way more entertaining. You can <u>enjoy the benefits of a huge screen and a great sound system</u>. Plus, I really like watching a movie with a big crowd. It's so fun hearing everyone's reactions. I think <u>it makes it a better experience.oo0</u> 雍偲過上寸上寸句資店a譴題) ざ

# 你更喜欢在家里看电影还是在电影院?

A: 我更喜欢在家看。<u>我性格比较内向</u>,所以在家看电影对我来说觉得更自在。<u>这样我就不用应</u> <u>付那些吵闹的人群了</u>。而且在家看电影的话,我可以随时暂停。

**B**: 我还是更喜欢在电影院看。那种感觉真的不一样。在电影院,你可以<u>享受到大屏幕和震撼的</u> <u>音效</u>。而且,我很喜欢和一大群人一起看,感受大家的反应,我觉得<u>这样看电影体验更好</u>。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### Topic 11 Loud noise (新题)

#### 1. What loud noise can you hear where you live? (高频)

**A:** There are lots of noises around me. I live in the downtown area of my city. So <u>there's always some</u> <u>kind of racket</u>. It's mostly traffic and construction. But sometimes there's a lot of noise from people <u>being rowdy on the streets</u>, which makes it hard to fall asleep.

**B:** I <u>live out in the suburbs</u>, so I don't really hear that much noise. <u>At most</u>, I hear some animal noises. At night, you can hear birds and small animals outside. Some animals like <u>rooting through my garbage</u>. Sometimes you can hear people playing music from their houses, but that's pretty rare.

#### 你住的地方有什么大声噪音吗?

A: 我周围有很多噪音。我住在城市的市中心,所以<u>总是有各种各样的喧闹声</u>。主要是交通和建筑工地的声音。但有时也会有人<u>在街上闹哄哄的</u>,这让我很难入睡。

B: 我<u>住在郊区</u>,所以并不太听得到噪音。<u>最多(顶多)</u>就是一些动物的声音。晚上,你可以听 到外面的鸟叫和小动物的声音。有些动物会<u>翻我的垃圾</u>。有时你可以听到人们在自己房子里放音 乐,但那很少见。

#### 2. Would you like to live in a less noisy place? (高频)

**A:** Honestly, I haven't thought much about living somewhere quieter because my current place <u>isn't that</u> <u>loud</u>. There's some traffic noise occasionally, but <u>it doesn't really bother me in my daily life</u>. So, I don't have plans to move just for the sake of a quieter environment.

**B:** Yes, I've actually been thinking a lot about moving to a quieter place. My current home isn't great because it's close to a busy road and there's also construction going on nearby. <u>The noise is starting to get to me, affecting both my focus and my overall well-being</u>. So, I'm planning on moving to a quieter area soon.

#### 你愿意住在一个更安静的地方吗?

A: 老实说,我没怎么考虑过搬到更安静的地方,因为我现在的地方<u>并不太吵</u>。偶尔会有一些交通噪音,但<u>它并不会影响到我的日常生活</u>。所以,我没有因为追求更安静的环境而计划搬家。
B: 是的,我实际上一直在考虑搬到一个更安静的地方。我现在的家不太好,因为它靠近一条很繁忙的道路,附近还有建筑工地。<u>噪音已经开始影响到我了,影响到我的注意力和整体幸福感。</u>所以,我计划尽快搬到一个更安静的地方。



#### 3. Do you think it's okay for people to make noise in public places? (高频)

**A:** Yes, it's okay to be loud in some places. For example, no one will be mad if you make loud noise in a public park. I always see children <u>running around and yelling in the park</u> close to my house. But making loud noise in a quiet public place, such as a library or hospital, <u>is considered rude</u>.

**B:** No, it's not acceptable to be loud in public places. You need to be respectful of the people around you. Playing loud music in a park, for example, is rude because some people might prefer to <u>enjoy some</u> <u>peace and quiet</u>. You should <u>save that kind of stuff for your own house</u>.

## 你认为可以在公共场所制造噪音吗?

A: 是的,在某些地方可以大声说话是可以的。比如,在公园里大声喧哗是可以的,没有人会因此而生气。我经常看到孩子们在我家附近的<u>公园里奔跑和大声喊叫</u>。但在安静的公共场所,比如 图书馆或医院里制造噪音被认为是不礼貌的。

**B**:不,不能在公共场所大声制造噪音。你需要尊重周围的人。比如,在公园里放很大声的音乐 是不礼貌的,因为有些人可能更喜欢<u>享受宁静</u>。你应该把那种事情留到自己家里去做。

#### 4. Do you enjoy listening to loud music? (高频)

A: Yes, loud music always gives me energy when I'm waking up in the morning and when I'm working out. It also helps me <u>blow off steam</u> when I'm angry. I really enjoy <u>cranking up the music to its</u> <u>maximum volume</u>. It's like <u>a healing way to let go of stress</u> and start fresh with a clearer mind.

**B:** No, I hate loud music. <u>I'm a pretty quiet person by nature</u>. So I don't like it when my environment is super noisy. Plus, I don't want to <u>risk damaging my hearing</u>. I don't understand it when people want to be around loud music. It just annoys me and makes me stressed out.

## 你喜欢听很大声的音乐吗?

A: 是的,大声的音乐总是可以在我早上醒来和锻炼时给我能量。它还能帮助我在生气时<u>释放情绪。我非常喜欢把音乐的音量调到最大</u>,这种方式就像是<u>一种排解压力</u>、以更清晰的头脑重新开始的治愈方式。

**B**:不,我不喜欢大声的音乐。<u>我天生比较安静</u>。所以,当我的周围环境非常吵闹时,我会感到 不舒服。另外,我也<u>不想冒损害听力的风险</u>。我不理解为什么有人喜欢身边有大声的音乐,那只 会让我感到烦躁和压力重重。



#### 5. Do you think there is too much noise in today's world?

A: Yes, especially in big cities. There is always noise from construction, vehicles, and people playing loud music. It's rare to have a moment of peace and quiet. Ads being played in public spaces also contribute to noise pollution. It's not an exaggeration to say that we're constantly surrounded by all sorts of noises.

B: No, I don't believe there's <u>an excessive amount of noise</u> in our society. Most of the noise we hear comes from construction and traffic, but construction isn't happening all the time, and traffic noise is primarily present <u>during peak hours</u>. Besides that, I find that the surroundings are generally peaceful. 你认为现在的世界噪音太多吗?

A: 是的,尤其是在大城市。总是有来自建筑工地、车辆和人们播放大声音乐的噪音。<u>很难找到</u> <u>片刻的宁静</u>。广告在公共空间的播放也加剧了噪音污染。<u>毫不夸张的说</u>,我们一直被各种各样的 噪音所包围。

**B**:不,我不认为我们的社会<u>噪音过多</u>。我们听到的大部分噪音来自建筑工地和交通,但建筑工 地并不是一直都在施工,交通噪音主要出现在<u>高峰时段</u>。除此之外,我觉得周围的环境通常还是 相对宁静的。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### Topic 12 Robot(新题)

#### 1. How interested are you in robots?/ Are you interested in robots? (高频)

**A:** (Yes,) robots have always <u>piqued my interest</u>. They are an important part of our society today. After all, <u>life is full of tedious tasks that would be better left to robots to perform</u>. It gives us humans more time for important or enjoyable activities, like hobbies or spending time with friends and family.

**B:** Well, robots are handy, but I think we need to beware of AI technology becoming too advanced. For example, with the invention of ChatGPT which can imitate or replace humans, a lot of jobs will be lost. Besides, it has the potential to <u>be used to commit cyber crimes like phishing scams</u>. It's possible that robots will soon become more intelligent and powerful than humans. <u>Scary!</u>

# 你对机器人有多感兴趣? /你对机器人感兴趣吗?

A: (是的,)我一直<u>对机器人很感兴趣</u>。它们是我们社会的重要组成部分。毕竟,<u>生活中有很多乏味的任务可以交给机器人来执行</u>。这可以让我们有更多的时间去做重要或有趣的事情,比如做自己爱好的事情或是和朋友家人相处。

B: 机器人确实很方便,但我认为我们需要警惕人工智能技术变得过于先进。比如,随着 ChatGPT 这样可以模仿或替代人类的程序的发明,很多工作将会丧失。此外,它有潜力<u>被用于进</u> 行网络犯罪,比如网络钓鱼诈骗。机器人可能很快就会变得比人类更聪明和更强大。<u>太吓人了</u>!

## 2. When you were a child, did you enjoy robot film? (高频)

A: Yes, I've always been <u>a sci-fi buff</u>, even as a kid. I still remember <u>how obsessed I was with Star Wars</u> back in elementary school. To this day, <u>I'm a huge fan of</u> the robot characters C3PO and R2D2 from the series because they're kind and lovable robots who help humans. I would love to own a robot like that in real life. • #認定す為過萄資產編編創★

**B:** Nah, <u>I've never really been into</u> science fiction, maybe because the kids at my school who liked movies like Star Trek were considered "nerdy". I think sci-fi films are more enjoyable for the type of people who know a lot about the capabilities of technology and science.

# 你小的时候,喜欢看有关机器人的电影吗?

A: 是的,我一直都是<u>科幻迷</u>,即使在小时候也是如此。<u>我仍然记得自己在小学时对《星球大战》的痴迷</u>。直到今天,我都是该系列中 C3PO 和 R2D2 这两个机器人角色的<u>超级粉丝</u>,因为它们是善良可爱的机器人,会帮助人类。我希望在现实生活中也能拥有这样的机器人。

B: 不,<u>我从来都不太喜欢</u>科幻电影,也许是因为我学校里喜欢《星际迷航》这类电影的孩子们 被认为是"书呆子"。我认为科幻电影更适合那些<u>对技术和科学的实力了解很多的人</u>。



#### 3. Would you like to have a robot to help you at home? (高频)

**A:** Yes, definitely! Robots can handle lots of cleaning tasks. You've probably heard about Roombas. They're neat little robots that vacuum your house for you. My friend has one and I can't believe how smart they are. They can <u>get around obstacles</u> and clean your floors so quickly. <u>It's definitely a time-saver</u>.

**B:** Yes, why not? Robots are really handy around the house. You can get them to clean your windows or your pool, or they can even <u>scrub your grill for you</u>. Honestly, I wish I could <u>have an all-purpose robot</u> <u>like the ones in science fiction movies</u> to handle all my household tasks.

## 你想要一个机器人在家里帮助你吗?

A: 当然! 机器人可以处理许多清洁任务。你可能听说过 Roomba。它们是很棒的小机器人,可以帮你吸尘。我的朋友有一台,我简直不敢相信它们多么聪明。它们可以<u>避开障碍物</u>,迅速清理地板。绝对是省时的好帮手。

**B**: 是的,为什么不呢?机器人在家里真的很方便。你可以让它们清洗窗户,或者清理泳池,甚 至可以<u>帮你刷烤架</u>。老实说,我希望我能<u>拥有一个多功能的机器人,就像科幻电影中的那些</u>,可 以帮助处理我所有的家务。

#### 4. Would you feel happy travelling in car with automatic driving? (高频)

**A:** Yes, I think letting robots <u>take the wheel on long journeys</u> is a good idea. After all, AI technology makes less errors than humans, and <u>cannot fall asleep behind the wheel</u> or do things like drinking and driving. I bet that in the future, all cars will be operated by robots.

**B:** I think self-driving cars are a good idea and could be safer than human drivers, but a human should still <u>sit behind the wheel</u> and be able to <u>override the autopilot</u>. After all, there have been some reports of deadly accidents caused by self-driving cars, so <u>it's not 100% safe</u>.

## 你接受车辆自动驾驶吗?

A: 是的,我认为<u>在长途旅行中让机器人接管方向盘</u>是个不错的主意。毕竟,人工智能技术犯的 错误比人类少,而且<u>不会在驾驶时打瞌睡</u>或喝酒驾驶。我敢打赌,在将来,所有的汽车都会由机 器人驾驶。

B: 我认为自动驾驶汽车是个好主意,可能比人类司机更安全,但应该有人类<u>坐在驾驶座上</u>,能 够<u>手动操作</u>。毕竟,已经有一些关于自动驾驶汽车导致致命事故的报道,所以<u>并不是 100%安全</u>。 见下页



#### 5. Would robots affect people's lives?

**A:** I think that robots <u>becoming more widespread</u> would definitely affect people's lives. Robots can make people's lives way more convenient. They can take care of <u>mundane tasks</u> that take up a lot of time. For example, cleaning robots can save people from having to <u>vacuum their floors</u> or wash their windows.

B: Well, I don't think that robots <u>make a big difference in our lives</u>. They can do some simple tasks, which makes our work easier and life more comfortable. But, you know, they can't be creative like humans, and they don't have feelings. So, they're just tools we use and don't really <u>shake up our lives all that drastically</u>. 机器人会影响人们的生活吗?

A: 我认为机器人<u>变得更加普及</u>肯定会影响人们的生活。机器人可以让人们的生活更加便利。它 们可以处理许多<u>乏味的任务</u>,这些任务通常都占用了人类很多时间。比如,清洁机器人可以帮助 人们省去吸尘和擦窗户的麻烦。

**B**: 我不认为机器人<u>在我们生活中会带来很大的变化</u>。它们可以完成一些简单的任务,使我们的 工作更轻松,生活更舒适。但是,你知道的,它们不能像人类一样富有创造力,也没有情感。所 以,它们只是我们使用的工具,<u>不会彻底改变我们的生活</u>。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### Topic 13 Running(新题)

#### 1. Did you do much running when you were a child? (高频)

A: Yes, when I was a child, I was definitely quite an active runner. My mom would often joke about how <u>I couldn't sit still for long</u>. Whether it was playing tag with friends or just goofing around in the yard, I always preferred running to walking. It was <u>my go-to way of burning off all that extra energy</u>.

**B:** No, <u>I wasn't much of a sports enthusiast</u> in my younger years. Running, particularly during PE classes, didn't really <u>capture my interest</u>; I found it a bit dull. When it came to physical activities, I was more drawn to things like swimming or biking, which I found much more enjoyable and engaging.

#### 你小时候经常跑步吗?

A: 是的,当我还是个孩子的时候,我绝对是一个活跃的跑步健将。我妈妈经常<u>开玩笑说我坐不住</u>。无论是和朋友们玩捉迷藏还是<u>在院子里胡闹</u>,我总是更喜欢跑步而不是走路。那是<u>我释放多</u>余精力的首选方式。

B:不,我小时候<u>不太热衷于运动</u>。跑步,尤其是体育课上的跑步,不太<u>吸引我的兴趣</u>;我觉得 有点无聊。在进行体育活动时,我更喜欢游泳或骑自行车之类的东西,我觉得那更有趣也更吸引 人。

## 2. What do you think of running as a form of exercise?(高频)

A: Well, running is a great form of exercise. <u>It strengthens your heart and improves your overall health</u>. It's a good way to do cardio while building up your body's endurance. <u>There's also such thing as a runner's high</u>. So you always feel great after a run, <u>which is a plus</u>.

**B:** I find running a boring form of exercise. <u>Sure, it's good to do cardio</u>. But there isn't a lot of variation in it. So you don't really strengthen all parts of your body. I think that if you want to exercise in a more efficient way, you should <u>do high-intensity workouts</u> that engage different parts of your body.

# 你认为跑步作为一种锻炼方式怎么样?

A: 跑步是一种很好的锻炼方式。<u>它能强健你的心脏,改善你的整体身体健康状态</u>。这是进行有 氧运动的好方法,同时也能提高身体的耐力。<u>还有一种被称为"跑步者的快感"的感觉</u>。所以在 跑步后你总会感觉很好,<u>这是一个加分项</u>。

**B**: 我觉得跑步是一种无聊的锻炼方式。<u>当然,进行有氧运动是很好的</u>。但它的变化不太多。所 以你不会真正锻炼到身体的各个部位。我认为,如果你想更高效地锻炼,应该进行涉及身体不同 部位的<u>高强度锻炼</u>。



#### 3. When was the last time you ran? (高频)

**A:** The last time I went running was probably a few weeks ago. Actually there's a nice running trail near my house that I like to use. I've made a few friends who also like to run. <u>When our schedules line up</u>, we go for long runs together. <u>It's a nice way to bond</u> while getting exercise.

**B:** I haven't gone running in a long time. <u>I find it hard to make the time for</u> running. I prefer <u>doing exercise</u> <u>in shorter, more concentrated bursts</u>. So I think the last time I went for a run was probably a few months ago, to be honest. It's not a habit that I've kept up with.

# 你上一次跑步是什么时候?

A: 我上一次跑步大概是几周前了。实际上,我家附近有一条很不错的跑道,我很喜欢去那里跑步。我认识了一些也同样喜欢跑步的朋友。<u>当我们的时间安排吻合时</u>,我们会一起去慢跑。这是一种锻炼的同时<u>互相交流(彼此拉近关系)的好方式</u>。

**B**: 我已经很久没有跑步了。我觉得<u>很难抽出时间</u>去跑步。我更喜欢<u>进行时间较短但更集中的锻</u> <u>炼</u>。所以说实话,我上一次去跑步大概已经是几个月前的事了。这不是我一直保持的习惯。

# 4. Are there any good places for running near where you live? (高频)

A: I usually go running in a public park not far from my house. It's a pretty big park, so you can <u>run along</u> <u>the path for quite a while</u>. Besides, it's a really nice path because there're lots of trees on either side. <u>It</u> <u>keeps you from getting too hot since you can run in the shade</u>.

**B:** I like to go running at a gym near my house. There's a big track where you can <u>run in circles</u>. Or if you prefer a <u>treadmill</u>, you can use one of the machines and just run on the spot. I find either way very calming. 你住的地方附近有没有适合跑步的好地方?

A: 我通常在我家附近的一个公园跑步。这是一个相当大的公园,你可以<u>沿着小路跑很长一段时</u>
<u>间</u>。另外,这是一条非常好的小路,因为两边有很多树,<u>能让你在阴凉处跑步,避免觉得太热</u>。
B: 我喜欢在我家附近的健身房跑步。那里有一个很大的跑道,你可以<u>一圈一圈地跑</u>。或者如果你喜欢跑步机,你可以使用其中的一台机器就地跑步。无论哪种方式,我都觉得很放松。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### Topic 14 Chatting(新题)

#### 1. Do you often chat with your friends? (高频)

**A:** Yes, I love chatting with friends. After all, <u>the whole point of having friends is to</u> spend time chatting about different things. When I chat with work friends, we'll usually <u>gossip about the work drama</u> or complain about the aspects of the job we don't like. <u>Venting helps us bond</u> and makes us feel better.

**B:** I love chatting with friends online while gaming. I <u>have a whole community of friends</u> that I haven't met in real life that I talk to regularly online. I always play Call of Duty with my gamer friends. We love getting competitive and <u>trash talking the other teams</u>. <u>It's all in good fun though</u>!

#### 你经常和朋友聊天吗?

A: 是的,我喜欢和朋友聊天。毕竟,<u>有朋友的目的就是</u>花时间聊不同的事情。当我和工作上的 朋友聊天时,通常我们会<u>八卦工作上的事情</u>或抱怨我们不喜欢的地方。<u>发泄情绪可以帮助我们关</u> 系走的更近,让我们感觉更好。

**B**: 我喜欢在玩游戏时在线与朋友聊天。<u>我有一群</u>从未在现实生活中见过面的<u>朋友</u>,我会在网上 定期与他们交流。我总是和他们一起玩《使命召唤》。我们喜欢竞争,并<u>嘲笑其他队伍</u>。不过这 都是开玩笑的!

## 2. Do you like chatting with your friends face-to-face or on social media? (高频)

**A:** I love <u>chatting it up on social media</u>. First of all, it's way easier to <u>multi-task</u>. I'm a very busy person, so I'm usually doing <u>a bunch of things</u> at once. You don't have to reply instantly online like you do in person. Plus, you can chat with people no matter where they are.

**B:** I like having face-to-face conversations offline. Online chatting may be convenient, but you don't really get to know people as well when it's online. In person, you can chat more easily. You can also <u>hear their</u> tone of voice and read their body language. So <u>you don't risk misinterpreting them as much</u>.

## 你喜欢面对面与朋友聊天还是在社交媒体上聊天?

A: 我喜欢<u>在社交媒体上聊天</u>。首先,这样更容易进行<u>多任务处理</u>。我是一个非常忙碌的人,通 常会一次<u>做很多事情</u>。在网上聊天不像面对面那样需要立刻回复。而且,不管他们人在何方,你 都可以与他们聊到天。

B: 我喜欢线下进行面对面的交流。在线聊天可能很方便,但你无法像线下那样真正了解别人。 而面对面交流就更容易一些。你可以<u>听到他们的语气</u>,看到他们的身体语言。<u>所以你不太容易误</u> 解别人。



#### 3. Do you like chatting with a group of friends or chatting with just one friend? (高频)

**A:** I prefer chatting with a group of people. It's always interesting to see <u>how people bounce off of each</u> <u>other</u>. I never get bored in a group conversation. Someone always has something interesting to say. Even if the conversation <u>dies down a little</u>, there's always someone to <u>pick things back up</u>.

**B:** I prefer chatting with just one person. In a big group, there will always be <u>someone who doesn't get</u> <u>heard or gets talked over</u>. It's hard to connect with others. When you talk with someone one-on-one, you can get to know them better. It's also easier to <u>keep up with the conversation</u>.

#### 你喜欢与一群朋友聊天还是只和一个朋友聊天?

A: 我更喜欢与一群人聊天。看<u>人们如何互动</u>总是很有趣的。在群体对话中,我永远不会感到无聊。总会有人聊到一些很有意思的话题。即使对话<u>稍微冷淡了一点</u>,也总会有人重新点燃话题。
B: 我更喜欢只和一个人聊天。在一个大群里,<u>总会有人没机会说话或被打断</u>。你很难与他人真正建立联系。但当你与某人一对一交谈时,你可以更好地了解他们,也更容易跟上说话的节奏。

#### 4. Do you ever have disagreements with your friend when you are chatting? (高频)

A: Yes, sometimes. <u>It's normal to disagree about things in any relationship</u>, and sometimes these disagreements turn into arguments. Usually my friends and I <u>argue about minor things</u> like what movie to watch or what restaurant to eat at. But sometimes we argue about more important topics like politics.

**B:** No, honestly, I'm someone who <u>tends to avoid conflict at all costs</u>, so if I disagree with someone, I'll try to just <u>keep it to myself</u>. Anyway, when I spend time with friends, we're usually just relaxing and trying to have a good time, so <u>there's no need to squabble</u>.

#### 你在聊天时是否会与朋友发生分歧?

A: 是的,有时候会。<u>在任何关系中,意见不合都是正常的</u>,有时这些不合是会演变成争论。通 常我和朋友们<u>会为一些小事争论</u>,比如看什么电影或在哪家餐厅吃饭。但有时我们也会就更重要 的话题争论,比如政治。

**B**: 不,说实话,我是那种<u>尽量避免冲突的人</u>,所以如果我与人意见不合,我会<u>尽量将自己的观</u> <u>点保留</u>。其实当我和朋友们在一起的时候,我们通常都只是很放松的玩,没有必要争吵。



# 5. How do you handle situations when your opinions differ from others?

A: I usually try to remain calm and respectful. It's not productive to <u>lose your temper</u> if people have a different opinion than you. Still, I like to <u>stick to my guns</u>. If someone has a different opinion, <u>I'll hear</u> them out. But it doesn't make me change my mind. <u>I just agree to disagree</u>.

B: If my opinion differs from others, I'll do my best to listen to their perspective and <u>take their ideas into</u> <u>account</u>. I mean, if we disagree, I'll try to understand why they have that opinion. Sometimes <u>it opens me</u> <u>up to new ways of looking at things</u>. I think it's best to be curious about different opinions rather than <u>judgmental</u>.

# 当你的观点与他人不同的时候,你会如何处理?

A: 我通常会尽量保持冷静和尊重。如果人们有不同的观点,<u>发脾气</u>是没有帮助的。但我喜欢<u>坚</u> <u>持自己的看法</u>。如果有人持不同观点,<u>我会倾听他们的意见</u>。但这并不会改变我的看法。我只是 同意不同的意见而已。

**B**: 如果我的观点与他人不同,我会尽力听取他们的观点并<u>考虑他们的想法</u>。我是说,如果我们 存在分歧,我会尽力理解他们为什么持有那种观点。有时<u>这会让我以新的方式看待问题</u>。我认为 最好是对不同的观点保持好奇,而不是带有偏见。
# 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### Topic 15 Tea or coffee(新题)

### 1. Do people like to drink tea and coffee in your country? (高频)

A: Yes, coffee and tea are the two most popular drinks in the world besides water. Since caffeine is so addicting, a lot of people <u>are hooked on it</u>, so I think it's something that will always be popular. Anyway, having a hot drink in the mornings is good for digestion and can help you wake up. Besides, <u>it's very comforting</u>.

B: No, I know a lot of people who don't drink coffee or tea. Most coffees and teas contain caffeine, which makes them less suitable for children. People also have to be careful about drinking them before bed or they might <u>have trouble getting to sleep</u>. Water or juice are more suitable drinks <u>for the general population</u>. 在你的国家,人们喜欢喝茶和咖啡吗?

A: 是的,咖啡和茶是除了水之外在这个世界上最受欢迎的两种饮料。因为咖啡因非常容易让人上瘾,所以很多人都<u>很着迷于它</u>,我认为这是一种会永远都非常受欢迎的东西。而且早上喝点热饮也有助于消化,还可以帮助你更清醒。另外,这些热饮喝起来让人觉得很舒心。

**B**:不,我知道很多人不喝咖啡或茶。大多数咖啡和茶都含有咖啡因,这使得它们并不太适合儿 童。而且人们还要小心不要在睡前喝它们,否则可能会<u>难以入睡</u>。<u>对于大多数人来说</u>,水或果汁 更适合。

### 2. Do you ever go out to drink tea or coffee? (高频)

**A:** Yes, I love going out for coffee. <u>The ambience in a coffee shop</u> is normally very pleasant. I like meeting friends over coffee or getting my work done in a cafe. Besides, I only have <u>a basic drip coffee maker</u> at home, so I enjoy ordering fancier coffees in cafes like lattes or cappuccinos.

**B:** Well, I love coffee but <u>buying coffee every day gets pricey</u>, so I prefer to save money by making it at home. The only time I buy coffee from a coffee shop is when I'm on vacation or on a road trip. Anyway, <u>I'm pretty particular about</u> how I like my coffee, so I prefer to just make it myself.

### 你有没有出去喝过茶或咖啡?

A: 是的,我喜欢出去喝咖啡。<u>咖啡店的氛围</u>通常非常愉快。我喜欢在咖啡馆与朋友见面或在咖啡馆完成我的工作。此外,我在家里只有<u>一台基础款的滴滤咖啡机</u>,所以我喜欢在咖啡馆点一些 更高级的咖啡,比如拿铁或卡布奇诺。

**B**: 我喜欢咖啡,但<u>每天买咖啡会很昂贵</u>,所以我更喜欢在家里自己做。我从咖啡店买咖啡的唯 一可能的情况是当我度假或是外出旅行时。总之,我对自己喜欢的咖啡<u>有一定的要求</u>,所以我更 愿意自己做。

#### 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究 针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### 3.Would you offer a visitor to your home tea or coffee? (高频)

A: Well, in China, <u>it's customary to enjoy tea when guests come over</u>. So, I always <u>keep a diverse range</u> of teas available at home, and I regularly offer them to my visitors, including black, white, green, and herbal teas. Many of my guests show interest in the various tea flavors, and <u>it often sparks discussions</u> during our conversations.

**B:** Well, coffee seems to be the most popular choice among my friends, and <u>it's also my go-to beverage</u> <u>at home</u>. So that's what I usually serve my guests. I like making homemade desserts like cake, chocolate brownies or cookies to serve as well, and these treats <u>all go very well with coffee</u>.

### 你会在家里给来访的客人提供茶还是咖啡?

A: 在中国,<u>习惯上是在客人来访时给客人沏茶喝</u>。所以,我家总是<u>备有各种各样的茶</u>,包括红茶、白茶、绿茶和花草茶。许多客人对各种茶的口味都很感兴趣,<u>这经常成为我们讨论的话题</u>。
B: 咖啡似乎是我朋友们最喜欢的选择,<u>也是我在家里的首选饮品</u>。所以这通常是我招待客人的选择。我还喜欢做一些自制的甜点,比如蛋糕、巧克力布朗尼或饼干,这些好吃的与咖啡都很搭。

#### 4. When was the last time you drank tea or coffee? (高频)

A: I had a cup of coffee this morning when I woke up. I always start the day with a cup of coffee. I even have a coffee maker with a timer on it that can be programmed to make coffee before you wake up. The smell always helps lure me out of bed. ● 蕥媤過辶寸鐹綯宀扂鋪厡創ミ

**B:** Well, I enjoy <u>sipping on cold drinks</u>, so I've been keeping <u>pitchers of iced tea</u> in my fridge. I actually enjoyed some yesterday while I was working from home. Normally, <u>I go for</u> fruity iced teas in the summer, but in the winter I stick to hot teas like Earl Gray.

### 你上次喝茶或咖啡是什么时候?

A: 今天早上我醒来时喝了一杯咖啡。我总是从一杯咖啡开始新的一天。我甚至有一台<u>带定时器</u>的咖啡机,可以在你醒来之前预约制作咖啡。咖啡的香味总是能帮助我起床。

**B**: 我喜欢<u>喝冷饮</u>,所以我一直在冰箱里备有<u>一些冰茶</u>。昨天我在家工作时就喝了一些。通常情况下,我在夏天<u>喜欢</u>果味冰茶,但在冬天我会选择像伯爵茶这样的热茶。



### 5. What do you prefer, tea or coffee?

**A:** Even though I love both coffee and tea, I guess I prefer tea because there are so many different kinds. Unlike coffee, tea comes in lots of different flavors. It can also <u>be used to cure different ailments</u>. For example, <u>chamomile tea can help with insomnia</u> and <u>peppermint tea can help with indigestion</u>.

**B:** It depends. I love starting my day with a coffee because it helps me wake up, and <u>nothing beats the</u> <u>smell of fresh coffee brewing</u>, but I prefer to drink <u>herbal tea</u> before bed since it doesn't have caffeine. If I had to choose one, I'd choose tea because the variety of flavors means you don't get bored of drinking it.

## 你更喜欢茶还是咖啡?

A: 即使我喜欢咖啡和茶,我想我还是更喜欢茶,因为茶有很多不同的种类。与咖啡不同,茶的口味很多。它还可以<u>用来治疗不同的疾病</u>。比如,<u>洋甘菊茶可以帮助入睡</u>,<u>薄荷茶可以缓解消化不良</u>。

B: 这要看情况。我喜欢以咖啡来开始新的一天,因为它能帮助我更清醒,而<u>新鲜咖啡煮沸的香</u> <u>味也是无可比拟的</u>,但在睡前,我更喜欢喝无咖啡因的<u>草本茶</u>。如果必须选择一种,我会选择茶, 因为不同的口味让你不会厌倦。

### 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



### Topic 16 Map (新题)

### 1. Do you often use a map on your phone? How often?(高频)

**A:** I use maps on my phone whenever I go anywhere. <u>I'm honestly so lost without my GPS</u>, even in my own neighborhood. It's pretty embarrassing <u>how directionally challenged I am</u>. I guess since I have always had my trusty Baidu Maps to guide me, I've never had to <u>learn my way around</u>.

**B:** I'm pretty good with directions, so I don't usually need to use a map application on my phone unless I'm going somewhere new. But using your phone to guide you when driving somewhere far <u>is a must</u>. The application I use also warns you about accidents and speed cameras, so it's <u>more than just a navigation</u> <u>hack</u>.  $oo \rightarrow #$ @ide = 1

# 你经常使用手机上的地图吗?多久用一次?

A: 我无论去哪都会用手机上的地图。说实话,<u>没有了 GPS,我就完全迷路了</u>,即使在我自己熟悉的社区里也是如此。<u>我的方向感实在太差了</u>。真是有点尴尬。我想是因为我一直有很可靠的百度地图来引导我,所以我从来没有学会自己认路。

**B**: 我在方向感方面还算不错,所以通常只有在去陌生地方时才需要使用手机上的地图导航。不 过只要去的地方远,使用手机导航都<u>是必不可少的</u>。我使用的应用程序还会提醒你有关事故和测 速摄像头的信息,所以它不仅仅是一个导航工具。

## 2. Have you ever used a paper map? (高频)

A: Yes, I use paper maps whenever I go somewhere without cellphone service. <u>It's nice taking a break</u> from technology sometimes. I like them because they give you a bigger picture of your surroundings compared to a digital map, so they are better for spatial awareness. They also provide more details than digital maps.

**B:** No, I always rely on digital maps to get around. <u>I find step-by-step instructions easier to follow while</u> <u>driving</u>. It's also safer if you are driving alone and don't have a buddy sitting next to you to help you navigate. Plus, digital maps are free and can be updated easily. I think <u>paper maps are quickly becoming</u> <u>obsolete</u>.

## 你曾经用过纸质地图吗?

A: 是的,当我去没有手机信号的地方时,我会使用纸质地图。<u>有时候暂时摆脱一下科技也挺好</u>的。我喜欢纸质地图,因为它们能更全面地展示周围的环境,<u>对于空间感知更有帮助</u>,而且提供的细节信息也更丰富。

B:不,我一直都是依赖数字地图来导航。<u>我发现在驾车时这样更容易按步就班地跟着指示前进</u>。如果你独自驾驶,旁边没有人帮助你导航,那么使用数字地图更安全。另外,数字地图是免费的,并且可以很容易就更新。我觉得<u>纸质地图很快就会过时</u>。



## 3. Would you ever put a map on the wall in your home when you were a child? (高频)

**A:** Yes, I think we had a map on <u>the walls of my childhood home</u>. I remember that my parents <u>put a little</u> <u>pin on the places they had been to</u>. They would tell me all about the different cities and countries they'd visited. It definitely made me curious about different parts of the world.

**B:** No, I don't remember having any maps on the wall in my home. As a kid, I was more focused on drawing whatever I wanted. My parents put some of my <u>doodles</u> on the walls. I always felt really proud when they did that. Even though <u>they were just scribbles</u>, my parents loved them.

# 你小时候是否会在家里的墙上贴地图?

A: 是的,我记得我<u>小时候家里的墙上</u>有地图。我记得我的父母<u>在他们去过的地方放了一些小图</u> <u>钉</u>。他们会告诉我关于他们去过的不同城市和国家的故事。这确实激发了我对世界不同地方的好 奇心。

**B**:不,我不记得家里的墙上有地图。小时候,我更专注于画我想画的东西。我的父母会把一些 我<u>随便乱写乱画的东西</u>贴在墙上。当他们这样做的时候,我总是感到非常自豪。尽管<u>那只是一些</u> <u>涂鸦</u>,但我的父母喜欢它们。

## 4. Do you find it easy to read maps? (高频)

A: No, I find it pretty difficult to read maps. I <u>have a terrible sense of direction</u>, so it's hard for me to <u>get</u> <u>a grasp of where I am based on a map</u>. Paper maps are especially difficult because you have to figure out which lines are roads and which lines are just describing the landscape.

**B:** Yeah, it's pretty easy to read maps. My parents <u>instilled that skill in me at a young age</u>. So if you show me a map, I can <u>find my way around</u> pretty easily. I also have a good sense of direction, which definitely helps. Honestly, I prefer paper maps over digital ones, which is pretty different from most of the people I know.

# 你觉得阅读地图容易吗?

**A:** 不,我觉得阅读地图相当困难。<u>我方向感很差</u>,所以<u>很难根据地图来确定自己的位置</u>。纸质 地图尤其困难,因为你必须弄清哪些线是道路,哪些线条只是地貌描述。

**B**: 是的,阅读地图对我来说相当容易。我父母<u>在我很小的时候就教会了我这项技能</u>。所以如果 你给我看一张地图,我可以<u>很轻松地找到方向</u>。我也有很好的方向感,这绝对有所帮助。说实话, 与我认识的大多数人不同,我更喜欢纸质地图而不是数字地图。

#### 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



### Topic 17 Clothing(新题)

### 1. Do you spend a lot of time deciding what to wear every day? (高频)

A: Yes, I'm very picky about my clothes and especially about the fabrics I wear. I<u>t's been proven that</u> the materials we put on our bodies affect our health. <u>Synthetic fabrics</u> can contain dangerous chemicals that can cause <u>skin irritation and respiratory issues</u>. That's why <u>I prefer fabrics like organic cotton or silk</u>. ###鬥過過句實店舗願創ぶ

**B:** No, <u>I don't like stressing out about what to wear</u>, so I just keep a few basics in my closet that I can <u>mix and match without thinking</u>. Afterall, there are lots of notable successful people who don't put much effort in their wardrobe. Take Steve Jobs for example, he was known for always wearing a black <u>turtleneck</u> and jeans.

## 你每天都会花很多时间挑选穿什么吗?

A: 是的,我对衣物非常挑剔,尤其是对我穿的面料挑剔。现在<u>已经证明了</u>我们身体上穿的材料 会影响我们的健康。<u>合成面料</u>可能含有危险的化学物质,可能引起<u>皮肤刺激和呼吸问题</u>。这就是 为什么我更喜欢有机棉或丝绸等面料。

B:不,<u>我不喜欢为穿什么而烦恼</u>,所以我只在衣柜里放一些基本款,<u>可以随意搭配而不用花时</u> <u>间考虑</u>。毕竟,有很多知名的成功人士对他们的服装不太讲究。以史蒂夫•乔布斯为例,他以总 是穿黑色<u>高领衫</u>和牛仔裤而闻名。

## 2. Do you prefer comfortable clothes or smart clothes? (高频)

A: I definitely prefer comfortable, casual clothing. I don't own a car, so I ride my bicycle everywhere that I commute. That means my clothing has to <u>be breathable</u> and <u>easy to move in</u>. I'm glad that <u>"athleisure"</u> <u>has become a trend</u>. I can't imagine living in the Victorian era when clothing was so complicated and <u>a</u> <u>lot less comfortable</u>.

**B:** I'd most likely go for clothes that are both formal and stylish. I love dressing up nice whenever I leave the house. Choosing clothing carefully and making sure <u>you always look put together</u> is important. <u>Maybe</u> <u>it's shallow, but it's just a fact that</u> people judge you based on appearance. Besides, you'll feel better about yourself when you know <u>you look presentable</u>.

# 你更喜欢舒适的衣服还是时髦的衣服?

A: 我绝对更喜欢舒适、休闲的服装。我没车,所以我每天通勤都要骑自行车。这意味着我的衣服必须透气且容易活动。我很高兴<u>"运动休闲"已经成为一种潮流</u>。我无法想象生活在维多利亚时代,那时的服装那么复杂,而且<u>不太舒适</u>。

**B**: 我更倾向于既正式又时尚的服装。我喜欢每次离开家都穿得漂漂亮亮的。精心选择服装,确 保<u>你总是看起来得体</u>是很重要的。<u>也许这听起来有点肤浅,但事实就是</u>人们总是根据外表来评判 你。另外,当你知道自己看起来整洁得体时,你也会感觉更好。



## 3. Were you allowed to choose your own clothes when you were a child? (高频)

A: Yeah, absolutely, when I was a child, my mom was really supportive of me choosing my own clothes. <u>I have vivid memories of eagerly picking out my outfits</u> for the following day each night, and this allowed me to feel independent and develop my sense of style. <u>It might seem small</u>, but it was a meaningful way for me to express myself.

**B:** Well, during my school years, I had to <u>stick to a dress code that required a uniform most of the time</u>. But on special occasions and holidays, I had the freedom to decide what I wanted to wear. <u>My parents</u> were usually pretty flexible about it, except during the freezing winters when I insisted on short sleeves – <u>that was a definite no!</u>

# 你小的时候可以自己选衣服吗?

A: 是的,绝对是的,小时候我妈妈非常支持我选择自己的衣服。<u>我清楚地记得</u>每天晚上都会<u>兴</u> <u>致勃勃地挑选第二天的服装</u>,这让我感到独立,也培养了我的时尚感。<u>这可能看起来微不足道,</u> 但对我来说是一种很有意义的表达自己的方式。

**B**: 在我上学的时候,我必须<u>遵守校规,大部分时间都得穿校服</u>。但在特殊场合和假期,我有自由选择穿什么。<u>我爸妈通常对此相当灵活</u>,除非在严寒的冬天,要是我坚持要穿短袖——<u>那是绝</u><u>对不行的</u>!

# 4. What do you do with your clothes when you no longer use them? (高频)

A: When I'm no longer using my clothes, I try to donate them. There are a lot of places in my city that accept used clothing. Then they make those clothes available to people in need. I think <u>it's a good way of paying it forward</u>. You should try to <u>help the less fortunate</u> whenever you can.

B: When I'm no longer using my clothes, I usually give them away to family or friends. I have a lot of younger relatives that I share clothes with. It's nice to <u>give them hand-me-downs</u> because then those clothes can stay in the family. Plus, my friends and I have similar styles. So we <u>swap clothes</u> sometimes. 当你不再穿某件衣物时,你会怎么处理?

A: 当我不再穿某件衣物时,我会尽可能把它们捐了。我所在的城市有很多接受旧衣物捐赠的地 方。然后他们会将这些衣物提供给有需要的人。我认为<u>这是一种回报社会的好方式</u>。你应该在你 能帮助不幸的人的时候尽量伸出援手。

**B**: 当我不再穿某件衣物时,我通常会把它们送给家人或朋友。我有很多年轻的亲戚,我会和他 们分享衣物。<u>给他们穿过的衣服</u>很好,因为这样这些衣服就可以留在家里。另外,我的朋友和我 有类似的穿衣风格,所以我们有时会<u>交换衣服</u>。



#### 5. What kind of clothes do you like to wear?

**A:** I like wearing clothes that are really <u>trendy</u>. I try to <u>keep up with the latest styles</u>, which is a lot of fun for me. They might not always be the most comfortable. But it helps me feel more confident when my outfit is stylish and <u>eye-catching</u>.

**B:** I love wearing clothes that are comfortable and <u>practical</u>. I prefer <u>loose-fitting shirts and more sensible</u> <u>pants</u>. I might not always be the most stylish one in the room, but I always <u>feel at ease</u> because my clothes are comfy, and they look good on me.

## 你喜欢穿什么样的衣服?

A: 我喜欢穿非常时尚的衣服。我努力<u>跟上最新的时尚潮流</u>,对我来说这很有意思。它们可能不 总是穿着最舒适的,但当我的服装时尚且引人注目时,我会感到更自信。

**B**: 我喜欢穿舒适、<u>实用的</u>衣服。我更喜欢<u>宽松的衬衫和更合身的裤子</u>。也许我不总是最时尚的 人,但我总是会感到很自在,因为我的衣服很舒适,而且穿起来也很好看。

### 6. Do you like wearing T-shirts?

**A:** Yes, I love wearing T-shirts, <u>who doesn't?</u> They are comfortable, stylish, and versatile. These days, T-shirts come in so many different styles and fabrics, so you can <u>dress them up or down</u>. A basic cotton T-shirt is great for <u>lounging</u> while a <u>button up T-shirt</u> could be more suitable for work.

**B:** No, T-shirts are too casual for me. I like <u>dressing to impress</u>, and T-shirts <u>don't make the cut for me</u>. Some people don't realize that their clothing makes them look <u>sloppy</u>. A first impression of someone is always based on appearance, so why not <u>step it up a little with some classier clothes</u>?

## 你喜欢穿 T 恤吗?

A: 是的,我喜欢穿 T 恤,<u>谁不喜欢呢?</u>它们既舒适、时尚又可以在不同的场合穿。如今, T 恤 有各种不同的款式和面料,所以你可以<u>根据需要穿得正式或休闲</u>。基础款的棉 T 恤非常适合休闲 时候穿,而带扣的 T 恤可能更适合工作。

B:不,T恤对我来说太休闲了。我喜欢<u>穿得体面</u>,T恤<u>不符合我的要求</u>。有些人不意识到他们的 服装让他们<u>看起来邋遢</u>。第一印象总是基于外表的,所以<u>为什么不穿些更有品味的衣服提升一下</u> <u>形象呢</u>?

Topic 18 Transport (考频不高,可以不复习)

# 1. How do you go to work / school?(work/study 主题里已有该题)

**A:** I take public transportation to get to work/school. <u>It's a lot more environmentally conscious</u>, which I feel good about. Plus, when I take the bus and subway, I don't have to focus on anything. I can just sit back and read a book or listen to music. <u>It's a pretty relaxing commute</u>.

**B:** I get to work/school by car. I was able to buy a car a few years back, <u>which was a total game-changer</u>. Now <u>I have more control over</u> when I leave the house and which route I can take. Of course, it also depends on traffic. But it's nice to have the independence of my own car. 菲認姆過過句實度創類的

# 你是怎么上班/上学的?

A: 我坐公交去上班/上学。<u>这样更环保</u>,我觉得很好。而且,当我乘坐公交车和地铁时,我不需 要专注于任何事情。我可以坐下来读书或听音乐。这是一段相当轻松的通勤时间。

**B**: 我开车去上班/上学。几年前我买了辆车,<u>这真的改变了游戏规则</u>。现在<u>我可以更自由地决定</u>何时离开家和选择哪条路线。当然,这还取决于交通情况。但拥有自己的车真的让人很独立。

# 2. What's the most popular means of transportation in your hometown?

A: Cycling is probably the most common way of <u>getting around my city</u>. They even passed a law that says that every new road that is built must have a bike lane. There is also <u>a community bike share program</u> with standard or electric bikes to rent with stations all over the city, so cycling is accessible to almost anyone!

**B:** My city has developed a traffic problem over the past decade, so more and more people are using public transport to get around. We have buses, metro, trains, and even <u>water taxis</u>. They are <u>adding improvements</u> <u>like more stops and extended service hours</u> to the public transport all the time.

# 你家乡最流行的交通方式是什么?

A: 自行车可能是<u>我城市最常见的出行方式</u>。甚至有法律规定,每条新建的道路都必须有自行车 道。城市里还有一个<u>社区共享单车项目</u>,提供标准或电动自行车供人租用,城市各处都有租赁站 点,因此几乎任何人都可以骑自行车!

B: 在过去的十年里,我的城市交通问题越来越严重,所以越来越多的人使用公共交通出行。我们有公共汽车、地铁、火车,甚至水上出租车。他们在不断改善公共交通,比如增加更多的站点和延长服务时间。

雅思 过过过 <sup>泡宝店研</sup>

### 3. How far is it from your home to work/school?

**A:** I <u>live just around the corner from my workplace</u>. I recently moved to a condo downtown, so I'm right <u>in the middle of all the action</u>. My city has a lot of traffic, and I hate commuting, it stresses me out! I feel lucky to be able to walk to work.

**B:** Well, my school or workplace is situated <u>quite a distance from my home</u>. Typically, I have to change subway lines twice to reach there, so most of the time, <u>my daily commute takes around 30 to 40 minutes</u>. I really want to get my driver's license soon so that I can drive to work, which might make things a lot more convenient.

## 你家到上班/上学的地方有多远?

A: <u>我住在离我的工作地点不远的地方</u>。我最近搬到了市区的一套公寓,所以<u>我正好住在热闹的</u> <u>地方(离哪都近)</u>。我的城市交通很繁忙,我讨厌通勤,它让我感到很有压力!能够步行上班, 我感到很幸运。

B: 嗯,我的学校或工作地点<u>离我家有一段距离</u>。通常,我必须换乘地铁线路两次才能到达那里, 所以大部分时间,<u>我的每日通勤需要大约 30 到 40 分钟</u>。我真的很想尽快拿到驾驶执照,这样我 就可以开车上班,可能会更加方便。

## 4. Do you think people will drive more in the future?

**A:** Yes, people have always loved driving and owning cars, so <u>I don't see that changing any time soon</u>. The only problem is all the traffic in big cities. Maybe in the future we will have <u>flying cars</u>, then we won't have to worry about <u>traffic congestion</u> on the roads.

**B:** No, I think there will be fewer people driving in the future, and public transit systems are getting more advanced. As the world's population grows, personal cars for everyone <u>cannot be sustainable</u>. There is already too much traffic in big cities. Besides, people are becoming more <u>environmentally conscious</u>, and public transport is better for the Earth.

## 你认为将来人们会更多地开车吗?

A: 是的,人们一直都喜欢开车和拥有自己的汽车,所以<u>我认为这不会很快改变</u>。唯一的问题是 大城市的交通拥堵。也许在未来,我们会有<u>飞行汽车</u>,那样我们就不必担心<u>道路上的交通堵塞</u>了。
B: 不,我认为将来会有更少的人开车,而且公共交通系统会变得更加先进。随着世界人口的增长,每个人都拥有私家车的状态<u>不可持续</u>。大城市的交通已经太拥挤了。此外,人们<u>越来越注重</u> <u>环保</u>,公共交通对地球也更有利。

(Copyrights to 雅思过过过淘宝店 铺)

### 46



#### Topic 19 Wild animals

#### 1. Are there many wild animals in your country? (高频)

A: Yeah, there are a ton of wild animals in my country. <u>I haven't seen many myself</u>. But I know that there are a lot of different species, including common animals like deer and rabbits, as well as larger <u>predator</u> <u>species</u>.

### 你们国家有很多野生动物吗?

A: 是的,在我的国家有很多野生动物。<u>我自己也没见过很多</u>。但我知道有很多不同的物种,包 括常见的动物,如鹿和兔子,以及大型食肉动物。 <u>Contaile Balage Ba</u>

B: 说实话我不知道...我的意思是,我认为在我的国家没有<u>那么多</u>野生动物。我的国家相当发达, <u>这意味着有很多大城市和人口非常密集的地区。</u>所以很难看到任何野生动物。看到大型动物是非 常罕见的。雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创

### 2. Have you ever been to a zoo or a safari park? (高频)

A: Yes, I've been to the zoo in my hometown a lot of times! I really like seeing the animals. I mean, I feel like I always learn something new. I like <u>reading the signs at their exhibits</u> and discovering more about them. They're so cool.

**B:** I've only been to the zoo once. I liked looking at the animals, but I also felt bad for them. <u>I don't think</u> any animal deserves to live in a cage all its life. It just makes me sad to see them.

### 你曾经去过动物园或野生动物园吗?

A: 是的,我去过我的家乡的动物园很多次了!我真的很喜欢看这些动物。我觉得我总是学到新 东西。我喜欢阅读他们展台上的说明,并发现更多关于它们的信息。他们太酷了。

**B**: 我只去过动物园一次。我喜欢看这些动物,但我也为它们感到难过。<u>我认为任何动物都不应</u> <u>该一辈子生活在笼子里。</u>看到他们让我很难过。



### 3.What is the animal you would like to see in the wild? (高频)

A: <u>Ever since I was a kid, I've dreamed of going on an African safari</u>. I'd be most excited to see some elephants, as they're the most interesting of the African animals. I love them because they are <u>gentle giants</u>, and very intelligent.

**B:** I'm <u>a scuba diver</u>, and I've always wanted to dive with whale sharks. Once, I did a diving trip in Cebu in the Philippines. It's known for whale sharks, but unfortunately, <u>I wasn't lucky enough to spot any</u>. 你想在野外看到的动物是什么?

A: <u>当我还是个孩子的时候,我一直梦想</u>着去非洲旅行。能看到一些大象让我感觉很高兴,因为 它们是非洲动物中最有趣的一种。我爱他们,因为他们是<u>温柔的巨人</u>,而且非常聪明。y<sub>薙腮;@让</sub>寸 <sup></sup><sub>遇每宝店舗係創</sub>。

**B**: 我是<u>一名潜水员</u>,我一直想和鲸鲨一起潜水。有一次,我在菲律宾的宿雾岛进行了一次潜水。 这里以鲸鲨而闻名,但不幸的是,我没有发现任何鲸鲨。

## 4.Are there TV programs about wild animals in your country? (高频)

A: Yes, there are plenty of TV programs in my country that focus on wild animals. Specifically, there are various <u>documentary series</u> that showcase wildlife from all around the world. These programs <u>provide</u> <u>great insights into the habits and habitats of these creatures</u>, which I find incredibly fascinating.

# 你们国家有关于野生动物的电视节目吗?(高频)

A: 是的,我国有很多电视节目都在关注野生动物。具体来说,<u>各种系列纪录片</u>展示了来自世界
各地的野生动物。这些节目提供了对这些生物习性和栖息地的深刻见解,我觉得这非常令人着迷。
B: <u>我只知道少数几个</u>。老实说,我不认为这种电视节目很流行。这就是为什么我们只能看到一些纪录片来了解动物和它们的栖息地。然而,热爱野生动物的人仍然可以从那里获得宝贵的知识。



## 5. Have you ever seen wild animals?

A: Yes, when I was a child, I often saw deer at my grandparents' <u>rural home</u>. Even to this day, those <u>memories have stayed with me vividly</u>. It was especially sweet to see baby deer because they were so cute.

**B:** No, I've never seen any wild animals. I live downtown, so <u>there isn't much wildlife</u>. If you want to see a wild animal, you have to go to a quieter part of town. Honestly, I prefer <u>being in the heart of the city</u>.

# 你见过野生动物吗?

A: 是的,当我还是个孩子的时候,我经常在<u>乡下的</u>祖父母家看到鹿。<u>直到今天</u>,这些记忆还历 历在目。我看到小鹿特别高兴,因为它们太可爱了。

**B**:不,我从来没见过任何野生动物。我住在市中心,所以<u>没有太多野生动物</u>。如果你想看野生动物,就必须去镇上一个比较安静的地方。老实说,<u>我更喜欢待在市中心</u>。

#### Topic 20 Teachers

#### 1.Do you want to be a teacher in the future?(高频)

**A:** Yes, I'd love to be a teacher in the future. <u>I find it really rewarding</u> to help educate and inspire the next generation. <u>It's a privilege to get to make a difference in a kid's life</u>. I hope I can teach soon.

**B:** No, <u>I don't see myself becoming a teacher in the future</u> because although it's an important job, it requires a lot of patience. I tend to <u>lose my patience easily</u>, and with children, it's essential to remain calm and patient. So I wouldn't be an ideal fit for such a job. 《 雅認過凸過編二音論源創 ]

#### 你将来想成为一名教师吗?

A: 是的,我希望将来能成为一名老师。<u>我发现帮助教育和鼓励下一代真的是有好处的。能改变</u>
<u>一个孩子的生活是一种荣幸</u>。我希望我能尽快能成为一名老师。雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创
B: 不,<u>我认为自己将来不会成为一名教师</u>,因为虽然这是一份重要的工作,但它需要很多耐心,我很容易失去耐心。对于孩子们必须保持冷静和耐心,所以我不适合做这样的工作。

### 2.Do you remember one of your teachers? (高频)

### 3. Do you have a favorite teacher? (高频)

合并答案 A: Yes, I remember my math teacher in high school very well. Math was always my worst subject. But she was very patient with me. <u>Whenever I was stuck on a problem</u>, she would <u>explain it to</u> me in a creative way. It helped me do well in her class.

合并答案 B: Yes, I still remember my art teacher from elementary school. Art was my favorite subject, partly because of what an amazing teacher I had. She taught us a variety of painting techniques and encouraged us to be creative with what we made for her class. 世華認門編編約實店編編創回

### 你还记得你的一个老师吗?

### 你有一个最喜欢的老师吗?

**合并答案 A**:是的,我很清楚记得我高中的数学老师。数学一直是我最糟糕的科目。但她对我很 有耐心。<u>每当我遇到一个问题,她就会以一种创造性的方式向我解释</u>。这种方式帮助我在她的课 上取得好成绩。

**合并答案 B**:是的,我还记得我小学的美术老师。艺术是我最喜欢的科目,这位了不起的老师占 了一部分原因。她教我们各种绘画技巧,并鼓励我们为她的班级创作。

#### 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究 针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### 4.Do you think teachers are different now than in the past?(高频)

A: In my opinion, teachers have changed a lot, as <u>pedagogy is always evolving</u>. These days, educators are realizing the importance of <u>adapting their curriculums to the diverse learning styles of students</u>. This makes learning more accessible for everyone. ? 雜想過編資店舖屬創/

**B:** I wouldn't say that teachers have changed over time. After all, the teaching style always depends on the teacher. Every school always has that one crazy teacher, the enjoyable and <u>well-liked teacher</u>, and the teacher who <u>is dreaded for being excessively strict</u>. <sup>•</sup> # 德麗過過句<sup>+</sup> 店鋪原創

## 你认为现在的老师和过去有什么不同吗?

A:在我看来,由于教学方法一直在发展,老师们已经改变了很多。如今,教育工作者正在意识到他们的<u>课程应该去适应学生们不同的学习风格,这很重要</u>。这使得每个人的学习更加容易。
B:我不觉得老师们已经随着时间的推移而改变了。毕竟,教学风格总是取决于老师。每一所学校都有一个疯狂的老师,一个令人愉快和很受欢迎的老师,还有一个害怕过于严格的老师。

### 5. What were your primary school teachers like?

A: Most of my elementary school teachers were super patient and nice. Even though I <u>struggled in some</u> <u>subjects back then</u>, they were always understanding and <u>kept cheering me on</u>. I'm really thankful to them for that.

**B**: I remember my elementary school teachers being quite strict. They paid a lot of attention to whether we followed the rules set by the school and the class. And they always <u>kept an eye on our behavior and performance</u>. But I have to say, it really helped us develop good study habits and behave well.

## 你的小学老师是什么样的老师?

A: 我的大多数小学老师都非常有耐心和友好。<u>尽管当时我在一些科目上学习很吃力</u>,但他们总 是理解我,并<u>一直为我加油。</u>我真的很感谢他们。

**B**: 我记得我的小学老师很严格。他们非常关注我们是否遵守了学校和班级规定的规则。他们总是<u>密切关注我们的行为和表现</u>。但我不得不说,这真的帮助我们培养了良好的学习习惯和行为举止。



### 1.Do you usually carry a bag?(高频)

A: Yes, I often carry my handbag as <u>it's convenient for carrying all my essential items</u>. I can fit my phone, wallet, keys, and anything else I might need while I'm out for the day. • 莊認過編編句( 實店舗塬創)

**B:** No, I don't usually carry a bag. I find it more convenient to <u>fit everything I need in my pockets</u>, such as my phone and keys. I don't have any <u>additional items</u> that require me to carry a bag, so it's not necessary for me.

# 你通常会带一个包吗?

A: 是的,我经常带我的手提包,<u>因为它方便携带我所有的日常物品。我出去玩的时候</u>可以装下 我的手机、钱包、钥匙和其他任何我可能需要的东西。

**B**:不,我通常不带包。我发现<u>把所有我需要的东西都放进口袋里更方便</u>,比如手机和钥匙。没 有任何额外的东西需要我带一个包,所以带包对我来说不是必要的。

# 2.What kinds of bags do you like to carry?

A: I usually like to have <u>a handbag or a crossbody purse</u> with me. Actually, I have different types of purses depending on what I'm doing. If I'm going to a party, I'll just bring a small <u>clutch</u>. But if I'm shopping, I'll bring a bigger purse.

**B:** I usually just bring a backpack if I need anything. I can usually <u>fit what I need into my pockets</u>. But if I'm going somewhere and need a few important things, I'll bring my backpack so <u>I don't have my hands</u> <u>full</u>.

## 你喜欢带哪些包?

A: 我通常喜欢带一<u>个手提包或挎着的包</u>。事实上,我有不同类型的包,这取决于我在做什么。 如果我要去参加一个聚会,我会带一个<u>小的手包</u>。但如果我在购物,我会带一个更大的包。 B: 如果我需要带什么物品,我通常只带一个背包。<u>我通常能把我需要的东西放进口袋里</u>。但如 果我去某个地方需要带一些重要的东西,我会带上我的背包,<u>这样我就不会手忙脚乱了</u>。



### 3.Do you change your bags often?

**A:** Yes, I like changing my bags pretty often. I love having bags that are good for different seasons and occasions. I also have bags in different colors so they can <u>coordinate with my outfits</u>.

**B:** No, I don't change my bags very often. <u>I'm the type of person who</u> gets one item and uses it for as long as they can. <u>I don't see the point in getting multiples of the same product</u>. I'm happy with only a few things.

## 你经常换包吗?(高频)

A: 是的,我喜欢经常换包。我喜欢有适合不同季节和不同场合的包。我也有不同颜色的包,所 以它们可以和我的衣服搭配。

**B**:不,我不经常换包。<u>我是那种尽可能长时间地使用一件物品的人</u>。<u>我认为有很多同类型的产</u>品没有意义。几件物品就能让我满意。+-<sup>推想通過丹甸</sup>/ 資店編煉創さ

4. When you were young, did you have a school bag?/ Did you use a backpack when you were a child?(高频)

A: Yes, I was a big Pokémon fan, and I remember I got a Pikachu backpack for my birthday one year. It was <u>a like giant, soft plush toy with straps that zipped open</u>. I really loved that bag.

**B:** Yes, as a kid I had a long walk to school, so a backpack to carry my things in was necessary. Then, when I went to high school, everyone was wearing <u>cross-body messenger bags</u>, so <u>I followed the trend</u> and got one too.

## 你小的时候有书包吗? /你小时候用过背包吗?

A: 是的,我是宝可梦的铁粉。我记得有一年生日我收到了一个皮卡丘背包。<u>那是一个巨大的、</u> <u>柔软的毛绒玩具,带子可以拉上拉链。我真的很喜欢那个包。</u>

**B**: 是的,我还是个孩子的时候,去学校要走很远的路,所以用背包来装东西是很必要的。然后 我上高中的时候,每个人都背着<u>斜挎包</u>,所以<u>我也跟风买了一个</u>。



# 5. Is a bag an ideal gift?/ Would you like it if a friend gave you a bag as a gift?

A: Yes, I love purses and handbags, especially designer bags like Louis Vuitton. However, these can cost thousands of dollars, so I would never expect one as a gift, although <u>I'd be over the moon if I ever received</u> one.

**B:** I don't think buying bags is a good gift since I've never understood <u>the hype around bags and purses</u>. Besides, style is very personal, and it's challenging to select accessories such as bags for someone else. So I avoid buying or accepting bags as gifts.

# 包是理想的礼物吗?如果朋友给你一个包作为礼物,你喜欢吗?

A: 是的,我喜欢钱包和手提包。尤其是像 LV 这样设计师设计的包。然而这些可能要花费数千 美元,所以我永远不会期待有一个这种包作为礼物。如果我能收到一个,我会非常开心。

B: 我不认为包是一个好的礼物,因为我从来都没有理解过为什么包还有钱包这些东西怎么会那 <u>么受欢迎</u>。此外,风格是非常个人化的东西,为别人选择包这类配饰很难。所以我会避免购买或 接受包作为礼物。

## 6. What kind of bags would you use when travelling?

**B:** I typically go for a backpack <u>when I'm out and about</u>. It's got plenty of space to fit all my stuff, and it just feels more chill and easygoing than carrying <u>a shoulder bag or a purse</u>.

# 旅行时会使用什么样的包?

A: 每次我去旅行,我都一定要带一个腰包。这是我的<u>首选配件,我可以在里面放我的手机和钱</u> <u>包</u>。这样我就可以解放双手,而且也知道我的东西不会被偷,这样<u>我会觉得很安心</u>。

**B**: <u>我通常出去的时候</u>背背包。它有足够的空间来容纳我所有的东西,<u>相比于携带单肩包或手袋,</u> 更让人轻松。

#### Topic 22 Dream

#### 1.What was your childhood dream?(高频)

**A:** I grew up in a province that has very cold, long winters, so my dream was always to move to the tropics. I had a fantasy about living on the beach and <u>starting every day with an ocean swim and a sun bath</u>.

**B:** As a young child, I was fascinated with outer space, so I dreamed of being an astronaut and going to space. I specifically dreamed of visiting Mars and really wanted to meet <u>a friendly extraterrestrial</u> and bring it back to Earth.

### 你童年时的梦想是什么?

A: 我在一个冬天非常寒冷、漫长的省份长大,所以我总是梦想搬到热带地区去。我幻想着住在海滩上,每天都能在海洋上游泳和享受日光浴开始新的一天。@ ###21+jji###@jefa#Magle#

**B**: 我小时候对外太空很着迷,所以我梦想成为一名宇航员进入太空。我特别想去火星,真的想见到一个很友好的外星人,并把它带回地球。

### 2.Are you the kind of person who sticks to dreams?(高频)

**A:** I would say that dreams stick to me. Typically, once I get an idea in my head, I won't be able to stop thinking about it until I accomplish it. When I find something that I really desire, <u>I'll stop at nothing to get it</u>.

**B**: No, I've had a lot of dreams over the years that <u>I've let slip away</u>. It's not realistic to live your fantasy life, or to accomplish every silly idea that comes into your head. After all, dreams are just dreams, not reality.

### 你是那种坚持梦想的人吗?

A: 我想说梦想一直伴随着我。通常情况下,一旦我心中有了一个想法,我就无法停止思考,直 到我完成这个想法。当我找到了我真正想要的东西时,<u>我会不惜一切代价去得到它。</u>

**B**:不,这些年来我有很多梦想<u>都已经流失了</u>。要活在自己的幻想世界里,或者去实现脑海中每 一个不切实际的想法,都是不现实的。毕竟,梦想只是梦想,而不是现实。



### 3. Are you an ambitious person?(高频)

A: Yes, I'm always pushing myself to do better. Ever since I was very young, my parents have put a lot of pressure on me to work hard and be successful. <u>I measure success by</u> how much I accomplish professionally.

B: No, I'm content with the simple things in life. <u>I like taking it easy and slowing down to enjoy life</u>. After all, what's the point of living if you don't take time to enjoy it? I measure success by how happy I feel. 你是个有野心的人吗?

**A**: 是的,我总是强迫自己做得更好。从我很小的时候,我的父母就给我很大的压力,让我努力 工作并成功。我用我的专业成就来衡量是否成功。

**B**:不,我觉得生活简单就好。<u>我喜欢悠闲地度过,放慢脚步去享受生活</u>。毕竟,如果你不花时间去享受生活,那生活又有什么意义呢?我用我感到的快乐来衡量成功。

## 4.What do you often dream of?/What is your dream job?/What is your current dream?(高频)

A: My ultimate goal in life is to <u>become self-employed</u>, I mean, wake up whenever I want, and to do creative work that I love. <u>It would be a dream come true to</u> travel to different countries and cities while pursuing my career aspirations. 3. 维想再通過编生启辅原创心:

**B:** My dream is to have a big family and to own my own pharmaceutical company. I dream of <u>realizing</u> great success in my professional life while still prioritizing family. I would love to retire by age 45 and start a charity.

# 你经常梦想着什么? /你梦想的工作是什么? /你现在的梦想是什么?

A: 我一生的终极目标就是<u>自己当老板</u>,就是说,想啥时候起床就啥时候起床,做我喜欢的有创 意的工作。能边追求职业目标边游遍不同的国家和城市,<u>那对我来说就是梦想成真了</u>。

**B**: 我梦想有个大家庭,还想自己开一家药厂。我希望<u>在工作上能大有作为,但家庭永远是第一</u> 位的。我想 45 岁就退休,然后去<u>搞个慈善事业</u>。



### 1. How important are friends to you?(高频)

A: Friends are super important to me. Since I live far away from my parents, I often spend holidays with my friends. And they are my go-to people when facing difficulties. So their significance in my life can sometimes even surpass that of family. 000 雜想鏈之寸過句宝店舖應創十

**B**: Friends are definitely important to me, but not as much as my family or my significant other. I mean, friends may <u>drift apart</u> due to work or life changes, and sometimes even betray you for their own interests. But family will never do that. So it's not wise to <u>put them above everything else in your life</u>.

## 朋友对你来说有多重要?

A: 朋友对我超级重要。因为我离父母住得很远,所以节假日经常是和朋友们一起过。遇到困难时,<u>他们是我第一个想找的人</u>。所以在我生活中,他们的重要性有时<u>甚至超过了家人</u>。
B: 朋友当然重要,但没有家人或我另一半重要。我是说,因为工作或生活变动,朋友可能会<u>渐</u>行渐远,有时候甚至会为了自己的利益背叛你。但家人不会这样。所以<u>把他们看得比生命中的其</u>他一切都重要是不明智的。

# 2. Do you often go out with your friends?(高频)

A: Yes, I go out with my friends pretty often. Luckily, <u>our schedules are more or less the same</u>. We always have weekends free, so we like to go for dinner or have drinks at least once every weekend.

**B:** No, unfortunately I don't go out with my friends that often. We're all very busy with work, and <u>we</u> tend to have opposing schedules. It's pretty difficult to find a day that works for all of us.

## 你经常和朋友出去吗?

A: 是的,我和朋友经常出去玩。幸运的是,<u>我们的日常时间安排差不多</u>。周末总是有空,所以 我们至少每周末都会去吃个饭或者喝点什么。

**B**:不,遗憾的是我不经常和朋友出去。我们都工作很忙,<u>时间也不太合得来</u>。很难找到一个大家都有空的日子。



#### 3.Where do you often meet each other? (高频)

#### 4.What do you usually do with your friends?(高频)

合并答案 A: I love going out for food and drinks with my friends. My city has a great food scene, so we usually pick a new restaurant to try every weekend. We like ordering a lot of dishes and sharing them all.

合并答案 B: My friends and I <u>take turns hosting dinner parties</u>. These days, we prefer staying in, especially since some of us have young kids. It seems like the older we get, the less we are able to go out together.

### 你们经常在哪里见面?

### 你通常和你的朋友做什么?

**合并答案 A**: 我<u>喜欢和朋友一起出去吃喝</u>。我们城市<u>好吃的很多</u>,所以我们通常每周末都会尝试 一个新餐厅。我们喜欢点很多菜,然后大家一起分享。

**合并答案 B**: 我和朋友会<u>轮流在家里办晚餐聚会</u>。这段时间我们更喜欢待在家里,特别是有些人 有小孩子了。感觉我们年纪越大,能一起出去玩的时间越少了。

### 5.Is it easy for you to find time to see your friends?

A: Yes, it's easy for me to <u>prioritize friendships</u>. Since I'm single and my family lives far away, I don't have anyone else I regularly spend my time with. I usually spend every weekend and some weekday evenings with my friends.

**B:** Well, the older I get, the harder it seems to make time for friends. I wish I could see them more, but <u>I</u> have other commitments like work and family. I miss the days when we could hang out every week.

### 你很容易腾出时间见朋友吗?

**A**: 对,对我来说,<u>把时间留给朋友(优先考虑朋友)</u>很容易。因为我单身,家人又住得远,所 以通常周末和工作日的晚上我都会和朋友们在一起。

**B**: 年纪越大, 找时间见朋友就越难了。我希望能多见见他们, 但<u>我还有其他事要做, 比如工作</u>和家庭。我很怀念以前每周都能聚的日子。



# 6. Do you have a friend you have known for a long time?

**A:** Yes, I have a friend that I've known since elementary school. It's been almost 20 years of friendship! We make it a tradition to gather every year during the Lunar New Year. Honestly, <u>it's like we've never</u> <u>skipped a beat</u>. We're still as tight as ever.

**B:** <u>It's kind of a bummer</u>, but every time I graduate, like from elementary or high school, I gradually <u>drift</u> <u>apart from some of the people I used to know.</u> So, to be honest, I haven't been able to keep up long-term friendships with any of them so far.

# 你有一个认识很久的朋友吗?

A: 是的,我有一个朋友从小学就认识。这是近20年的友谊!每年农历新年期间的聚会是我们的 一个传统。老实说,就像从来没有不同频一样,我们还是像以前一样亲密。

**B**: <u>这说起来有点遗憾</u>,每次我毕业,比如从小学或高中毕业,我都会<u>逐渐远离</u>我以前认识的一些人。所以说实话,到目前为止,我还不能和他们中的任何一个保持长期的友谊。



### <mark>Topic 24 Ice cream</mark>

### 1.Do you like to eat ice cream?(高频)

A: Yes, I love ice cream! I have a big sweet tooth, so I enjoy eating ice cream whenever I can. Plus, there are so many delicious flavors to try. It's really a great treat for the summer. My favorite flavor is definitely chocolate.

**B:** No, I don't like eating ice cream. <u>I don't have much of a sweet tooth</u>. So I don't really enjoy most desserts. Ice cream is too sweet and too cold for me. I prefer salty snacks like chips or <u>pretzels</u> over sweet ones.

### 你喜欢吃冰淇淋吗?

A: 是的,我喜欢吃冰淇淋!<u>我很喜欢吃甜食</u>,所以只要有机会我就会吃冰淇淋。另外,还有很 多美味的口味可以尝试。夏天吃真的爽到不行。我最喜欢的是巧克力味的。

**B 版:**不,我不喜欢吃冰淇淋。<u>我不太喜欢吃甜食</u>。所以大多数甜点我都不喜欢。冰淇淋对我来 说太甜、太冷了。我更喜欢咸口的零食,比如薯条或椒盐脆饼。

### 2.Did you eat ice cream when you were a child?(高频)

A: Yes, when I was a child, I absolutely loved ice cream and would even <u>skip meals to enjoy two cones</u> <u>in a row</u> during summer. But my mom <u>was concerned about my digestion</u> and only allowed me to have one ice cream per day.

**B:** No, my parents never kept junk food in the house when I was younger, so I didn't get to have ice cream very often. Sometimes I got to have it at friend's houses or special occasions like birthday parties, but <u>it</u> wasn't a regular occurrence.

### 你小时候吃过冰淇淋吗?

A: 是的,小时候我超爱冰淇淋,夏天的时候甚至会<u>不吃饭直接吃两个甜筒</u>。但我妈妈<u>担心我消</u> <u>化不好</u>,所以每天只让我吃一个。

**B**:不,我家里小时候没有垃圾食品,所以我很少吃冰淇淋。有时候在朋友家或者特殊场合像生日派对才吃,但这并不常见。

#### 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究 针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



## 3.Are there shops selling ice cream near the place where you live?(高频)

A: Yes, there's a very popular dessert shop near my place. It mainly sells <u>soft-serve ice cream</u> that you can dip in different flavors of melted chocolate and <u>different toppings</u>. Unfortunately, there is always a long line at this place, especially when it's hot and sunny. " 薙媤過過過匋寶扂舖願創

**B:** <u>Ice cream shops struggle during the winter where I live</u> because it's so cold for most of the year. So, opening a business that only sells ice cream around here would be foolish. That's why I always choose McDonald's ice cream to satisfy my sweet tooth.

## 在你住的地方附近有卖冰淇淋的商店吗?

A: 我家附近有一个很火的甜品店。主要是卖<u>软冰淇淋</u>,还可以蘸各种口味的融化巧克力和<u>不同</u>的<u>配料</u>。但不幸的是,那里总是排长队,尤其是天气好的时候。

**B**: 我住的地方冬天特别冷,所以<u>卖冰淇淋的店铺在冬季生意很难做</u>。在这种环境里单纯只卖冰 淇淋开个店那简直是找死。所以,我通常就去麦当劳买个冰淇淋来解解馋。

# 4.Have you ever made ice cream?/Can you make ice cream yourself?(高频)

**A:** Yes, I've made ice cream before! It's a very fun process. Even though it takes a long time, it's worth it in the end. Having homemade ice cream <u>is a really special treat</u>. It feels healthier than <u>the store-bought stuff</u>.

**B:** No, I've never <u>tried my hand at making ice cream</u>. It seems like a very long and complicated process. It might be fun as well. But honestly, I'm happy to just buy ice cream from the store. <u>It's a lot simpler that way</u>.

# 你曾经做过冰淇淋吗? /你能自己做冰淇淋吗?

A: 有啊,我以前做过冰淇淋!做的过程挺有趣的。虽然需要花很长时间,但最后的结果很值得。 自制冰淇淋<u>真的是一种特别的享受</u>。感觉比超市买的更健康。

**B**:没有,我从来没<u>尝试过自己做</u>冰淇淋。听起来好像是一个很长而且复杂的过程。可能也挺好玩的。但老实说,我还是喜欢从超市买冰淇淋,<u>这样简单多了</u>。



### 5. Do you eat ice cream a lot?

**A:** Yes, but I'm trying to stop. Whenever I look at <u>the nutritional information on the ice cream carton</u>, I feel really guilty for eating it. <u>I always tell myself I'll cut back</u>, but then the next day I'm back at the grocery store buying more...

**B:** No, I don't buy it because I <u>have no self-control when it comes to</u> ice cream. Once I start eating it, it's hard for me to stop. Besides, <u>dairy upsets my stomach</u>, so I try to avoid foods that contain milk.

## 你经常吃冰淇淋吗?

A: 是的,但我在尝试戒掉。每次我看<u>冰淇淋包装上的营养信息介绍</u>,我都为吃了感到内疚。<u>我</u>总是告诉自己要减少吃,可惜第二天我又会去杂货店买更多...

**B**:不,我不买冰淇淋,因为<u>我在面对冰淇淋时毫无自控力</u>。一旦我开始吃,就很难停下来。而 且,奶制品总是会让我的胃不舒服,所以我尽量避免含有牛奶的食物。



#### Topic 25 Favorite day/Week

#### 1.Which day is your favorite day of the week?(高频)

**A:** My favorite day is Sunday. In my opinion, <u>Sunday is a lazy day made for rest and relaxation</u>. I love sleeping in, staying in my pajamas, and <u>having a big, indulgent breakfast</u> on Sundays. Overall, I like having an excuse to be lazy.

**B:** I have to say that Friday is my favorite day of the week. You know, <u>it marks the start of the weekend</u>. <u>I find that my workday just flies by because I end up daydreaming about all my exciting plans for the weekend</u>.

#### 一周中你最喜欢的是哪一天?

A: 我最喜欢的一天是星期天。在我看来,<u>星期天是一个懒洋洋的日子</u>,专门用来休息和放松。
我喜欢睡懒觉,穿着睡衣,然后在星期天<u>吃一顿丰盛的早餐</u>。总的来说,我喜欢有个理由躺平。
B: 我要说星期五是我最喜欢的一天。你知道的,<u>它标志着周末的开始</u>。我觉得这时候<u>我的工作</u>
日总是会飞逝而过,因为我总是会开始幻想周末的所有令人兴奋的计划。

### 2.Which day is your least favorite day of the week?(高频)

A: Ever since I started working an office 9-5 job, I hate Mondays so much. The weekend feels so far away, and there is always so much work to do. <u>Time seems to drag on longer than usual</u> on Mondays because it's the first day of the work week. oo----→ 華認過辶寸過匋主店舗源創 💉

**B:** To be honest, Sundays, especially Sunday evenings, <u>are not my cup of tea</u> because it means I have to go to school the next day, and there will be <u>piles of homework</u> waiting for me. Just the thought of it stresses me out, so I tend to <u>feel pretty down</u> on Sundays.

#### 你一周中最不喜欢的一天是哪一天?

A: 自从我开始<u>朝九晚五的上班</u>,我最讨厌星期一了。周末似乎离得很远,总是有那么多工作要做。星期一似乎时间过得比平常慢,因为这是工作周的第一天。

B: 说实话,星期天,特别是星期天晚上,<u>不是我的菜(我不喜欢)</u>,因为这意味着我第二天要 上学,还有<u>一大堆作业</u>等着我。一想到这些,我就会感到很有压力,所以我在星期天通常<u>情绪低</u> <u>落</u>。



### 3. What's your busiest day of the week?(高频)

**A:** My busiest day of the week is definitely Monday. Since it's the first day after the weekend, I have to deal with a lot of tasks that <u>got pushed from Friday to Monday</u>. That means I usually have to answer lots of emails and even make several phone calls to deal with difficult issues.

**B:** My busiest day of the week is probably Friday because most of my teachers require assignments to be submitted by Saturday. So, Friday becomes my deadline, and sometimes I have to <u>pull all-nighters</u> to complete all my tasks before Saturday morning.

# 你一周中最忙的一天是什么时候?

A: 我一周中最忙的一天绝对是星期一。因为这是周末后的第一天,我需要处理很多从周五拖到 星期一的任务。这意味着我通常需要回复很多邮件,甚至要打些电话来处理棘手的问题。
B: 我一周中最忙的一天可能是星期五,因为大多数老师要求在星期六之前提交作业。所以,星期五成了我的最后期限,有时我必须熬夜在星期六早上之前完成所有任务。

## 4.How do you usually spend your time?(高频)

A: <u>My favorite pastime is</u> exercising, especially outdoors. <u>I love starting every day with</u> yoga, then doing some cycling, running, or team sports in the park with my friends. When it comes to indoor sports, dancing is my favorite.

**B:** I love to read fiction or watch movies in my spare time. For me, <u>this is the perfect escape from reality</u>. <u>Getting lost in the world of books and films</u> always helps me forget about my own problems for a while. 你通常会如何打发时间呢?

A: <u>我最喜欢的消遣方式</u>是锻炼,尤其是户外锻炼。<u>我喜欢每天早上从</u>瑜伽<u>开始</u>,然后和朋友们 在公园里骑车、跑步或进行团队运动。至于室内运动,跳舞是我最喜欢的。

B: 我在闲暇时喜欢阅读小说或看电影。对我来说,这是完美的逃避现实的方式。沉浸在书籍和 电影的世界中总是能帮助我暂时忘记自己的烦心事。



## 5. Is there anything that you do every day?

A: Yes, I take my dog for a walk every day. He's a very energetic dog, which means he needs tons of exercise. So taking him for a walk three or even four times a day <u>is an absolute must</u>. <u>On the plus side</u>, it helps me exercise as well.

**B:** I have a pretty busy schedule that <u>changes day to day</u>. So I don't have that many daily routines. But I like to write in my journal every day, even if it's just a brief note about my day. I think it's a great way to help me <u>stay mindful</u>.

# 有什么事情是你每天都在做的吗?

A: 有的,我每天都要遛狗。我的狗精力充沛,总是需要大量的运动。因此,每天遛他三四次<u>是</u>绝对必要的。另外,这也帮助了我锻炼身体。

**B**: 我的日程安排相当忙碌,<u>每天都会有所变化</u>。所以我没有太多的日常固定做的事情。但我喜欢每天都写日记,即使只是简短地记录一下我的一天。我觉得这是帮助我<u>保持注意力/保持专注</u>的好方法。

## 6. What do you usually do on weekends?

**A:** During the weekends, I typically go out with my friends to do some shopping or <u>hit up a karaoke bar</u>. It's a rare chance to <u>unwind</u>, so I love <u>having a blast with</u> my friends and having a good time.

**B:** On weekends, I enjoy sleeping in and <u>lounging around at home</u>, watching my favorite movies or playing video games. After a long and exhausting week of work, I'm not really keen on going out. <u>I prefer the comfort of my own space</u>.

# 你通常在周末做什么?

A: 周末我通常会和朋友出去购物或<u>去 KTV</u>。这是一个难得的<u>放松</u>机会,所以我喜欢和朋友一起 <u>狂欢</u>,度过一段美好时光。

**B**:周末我喜欢睡懒、<u>在家里悠闲的躺着</u>、看我喜欢的电影或是打游戏。在经历了漫长而疲惫的 一周工作之后,我不太愿意出门。<u>我更喜欢我舒舒服服的家</u>。



## 7. Are weekdays and weekends the same for you?

**A:** It's completely different! On weekdays, <u>I'm swamped with a bunch of tasks to tackle</u>. But the weekends are entirely my own time. I can kick back and unwind <u>without a care in the world about studying or work</u>.

**B:** Honestly, weekdays and weekends are pretty much the same for me. <u>I have a ton of things on my plate</u>, and even on weekends, I often find myself <u>putting in extra hours</u>. It can be quite overwhelming at times. 工作日和周末对你来说一样吗?

A: 完全不同! 工作日<u>我忙于处理一堆事情</u>。但周末完全是我自己的时间。我可以轻松、无忧无 虑地度过,不必去考虑学习或工作。

**B**: 老实说,对我来说工作日和周末差不多。<u>我总是有一大堆事要做</u>,就算是周末,我也<u>经常加</u> <u>班</u>。有时候真的有点儿累人。 (**Copyrights to** 雅思过过过淘宝店铺)

#### 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答

#### **Topic 26 Concentration**

#### 1.Did you stay focused in class when you were a child?(高频)

**A:** Yes, I was fortunate to have had some really good teachers when I was younger. They <u>made the lessons</u> <u>engaging and interesting</u>, which made it easy for me to pay attention at school. <u>I'm grateful for their efforts</u>, as it helped me to learn and enjoy my time in the classroom.

B: No, I've always been an active person who has a hard time sitting still. I was incredibly focused in gym, drama, or art classes, but when it came to math, for example, I was always <u>fidgeting or daydreaming</u>. Actually, I still have this problem as an adult. 义権認識上寸過每主席補原創。

### 你小时候在课堂上集中注意力吗?

A: 对,我小时候运气好,遇到了一些很好的老师。他们<u>把课讲得很吸引人</u>,让我觉得很容易专 心听下去。<u>我很感激他们的付出</u>,因为这帮助我在课堂上学到很多东西,也让我觉得上课挺有意 思的。

**B**:不,我一直都都是个活跃好动的人,<u>坐不住</u>。在体育、表演或美术课上我特别专心,但数学课上我就<u>总是坐立不安或者发呆走神。</u>其实成年了这个问题也还在。

## 2.Are you a focused person?(高频)

A: When I am interested in an activity, I'm incredibly focused. For example, <u>I feel I have unlimited energy</u> for certain creative projects. I can <u>spend hours in a "flow state</u>", barely noticing the time pass when I do things I love.

**B:** I wouldn't describe myself as a particularly focused person. If I'm doing something I don't enjoy, <u>it</u> <u>takes me ages to</u> get it done. I tend to <u>procrastinate</u> and get distracted easily when the work is boring. I always joke that I have unlimited productivity when I'm supposed to be doing something else!

## 你是一个专注的人吗?

A: 如果我对某个活动感兴趣,我就特别专心。比如,对于某些创造性的项目,<u>我觉得我能量无</u>限。我能花好几个小时完全沉浸在这个状态里,几乎感觉不到时间在流逝。

B: 我不会说我是个特别容易专心的人。如果我在做我不喜欢的事,<u>我完成起来就会特别慢(花的时间很长)</u>。如果工作无聊,我就很容易<u>拖延</u>和分心。我总是开玩笑说,要让我做点喜欢的事儿的话我有无限的生产力!



#### 3.How do you stay focused?(高频)

**B:** I usually <u>stay motivated and on track</u> by <u>picturing the sense of accomplishment</u> I'll have after finishing a task, rather than how I feel actually doing it. I also use tricks like timers to plan little breaks, and rewards to keep myself motivated and make working more fun.

## 你如何保持专注?

A: 我总是通过不断提醒自己任务为何重要来保持专心。就像一位伟大的哲学家曾说:"<u>如果你</u> 明白了为什么,你就能应对任何事情,知道应该怎么做。"当我做一些<u>可能很枯燥但却必要的</u>事 情时,我就会想到这句话。

**B**: 我通常会<u>通过想象完成任务后的成就感</u>来保持动力和专心,我不会去一直想实际做时候的感觉。我还会用定时器来计划间断性休息,也会用奖励来激励自己,让工作变得更有趣。

## 4.Is it easy to stay focused in a noisy environment?(高频)

A: It depends on the noise. I find that natural sounds like a thunderstorm or a waterfall can actually help me focus. But noises from construction, cars, or people talking can have the opposite effect. In these cases, I prefer to use earplugs so I can <u>block out the noise and maintain my focus</u>. ◆雅想鍋马這寸每賓店鋪讓創,.\*"

**B:** <u>It can be a real struggle for me</u> to stay focused in a noisy place. But I've <u>found some hacks</u> that can help me overcome this issue. For example, when there was construction on my building, I played white noise over a speaker to <u>help drown out the banging and machinery noises</u>.

## 在嘈杂的环境中保持集中注意力容易吗?

A: 这要看是什么噪音了。像雷雨或瀑布这种自然声音其实能帮我保持专注。但建筑、汽车或人 说话的噪音就会起到相反的效果。这种情况下,我更喜欢用耳塞来<u>隔绝噪音,保持专心</u>。

**B**:在嘈杂的地方保持专心<u>对我来说是很难的事情</u>。但我<u>找到了一些小技巧</u>来应对这个问题。比 如,我家楼里有施工队的时候,我会放白噪音来<u>掩盖那些敲击和机械噪音</u>。



## <mark>Topic 27 Language</mark>

### 1.What languages can you speak?(高频)

**A:** I can speak Mandarin, Cantonese, and English fluently. <u>My proficiency in Cantonese</u> is thanks to my grandparents, who taught me the language during my childhood. And I have been learning English since primary school, <u>continuing to improve to this day</u>.

**B:** Apart from Chinese, I'm also proficient in English and <u>have a good grasp of French</u>. I pursued French as my major in college and <u>I'm confident in my proficiency in the language</u>.

## 你能说哪些语言?

A: 我能流利地讲普通话、粤语和英语。<u>我一口流利的粤语</u>是我小时候跟我爷爷奶奶学的。至于 英语,从小学开始学,一直到现在还在不断精进。

**B**:除了中文,我英语也说得很好,法语<u>掌握的也不错</u>。我大学主修法语,对自己在这方面的能力还是挺有信心的。

# 2.What languages would you like to learn in the future?(高频)

**A:** Well, I have a plan to learn a new language, and I'm considering learning Spanish <u>as my first option</u>. I'm attracted to Spanish culture and landscapes, and <u>if I ever plan to</u> live there for a while, it's essential for me to learn their language.

**B:** To be honest, it takes years to learn and perfect a language, and <u>I just don't see myself having the time</u> or energy in the near future. However, if I ever moved to a new country, I'm sure I would find the motivation. Afterall, <u>I would need it to get by</u>. Cove 雅德迪江甘語編章店編環創 get

## 将来你想学哪些语言?

A: 我有打算学习新的语言,<u>首选是</u>西班牙语。我对西班牙的文化和风景很感兴趣,如果<u>我打算</u>将来去那里住一段时间的话,学这门语言是很必要的。

**B**: 老实说,学一门语言需要好几年,短期内<u>我觉得我没有那个时间和精力</u>。但如果我搬到一个 新国家,我肯定会找到动力,毕竟<u>为了生活/为了生计还是需要的</u>。



### 3. When did you first learn English at school?(高频)

A: At my school we started learning English at 6 years old. They say <u>the earlier you start learning a</u> <u>language</u>, the easier it is to acquire it, so I believe it helped me a lot to start learning English at a young age.

**B:** I started learning English in high school. I remember being very excited to learn it because I knew it would <u>come in handy</u> when I traveled. I also really wanted to be able to watch English Hollywood movies <u>without subtitles</u>.

# 你在学校第一次学英语是什么时候?

A: 我们学校 6 岁就开始教英语了。人们都说<u>越早学习语言越容易掌握</u>,所以我觉得我小时候就 开始学英语对我来说很有帮助。

**B**: 我是在高中开始学英语的。记得当时学的时候特别兴奋,因为我知道学好它以后将来旅行会 很方便。我也很想能够看懂英文的好莱坞电影,<u>不用看字幕</u>。

# 4. Do you like to learn a second language?(高频)

**A:**I really enjoy learning new languages. It's a fantastic way to <u>gain insight into the culture of different</u> regions and countries. Besides, mastering a second language can <u>open up better job opportunities</u>, so why not give it a try?

**B**:Honestly, I don't like learning a second language. It can be quite a challenge for me and <u>I don't seem to</u> have a natural talent for it. I always have to <u>put in more effort than others</u> to understand basic grammar structures.

# 你喜欢学习第二语言吗?

A: 我真的很喜欢学习新的语言。这是<u>了解不同地区和国家文化</u>的好方法。而且,掌握第二语言 也能带来更好的工作机会,为什么不试一试呢?

**B**: 老实说,我不喜欢学二外。对我来说挺难的,<u>我也没有什么语言天赋</u>。比起别人,我总需要 <u>付出更多努力</u>才能搞懂基础的语法结构。



### 5. Have you learned any other languages in school?

**A:** English is the only foreign language I've studied. And I have been learning it since the first grade. Luckily, <u>it has come in very handy while traveling</u>, as it seems that most people know at least a little bit of English.

**B:** I've been learning French for the past 3 years. I've always loved French cuisine, films, and culture, so <u>naturally I wanted to learn the language</u>. Besides, French is spoken in 29 countries, which makes it useful for travel.

## 你在学校学过其他语言吗?

A: 英语是我唯一学过的外语。从一年级开始就学了。幸运的是,我学过的东西<u>在旅行时非常有</u>用,因为大多数人都至少会说一点英语。

**B**: 过去三年里我一直在学法语。我一直都很喜欢法国的美食、电影和文化,所以<u>自然想学这门</u> 语言。而且,法语在 29 个国家都有人用,所以出去旅行也很实用。

# 6. How do you learn a foreign language?

A: Well, I really enjoy <u>diving into the original novels</u> that capture my interest. It's a fantastic way for me to expand my vocabulary and gain a good understanding of grammar structures. Actually, that's how I've been improving my English reading skills.

B: When I'm learning a new language, I like to <u>hop online</u> and have conversations with native English speakers. It's super helpful for improving my English, especially when I chat with Filipino English tutors. 你如何学习一门外语?

A: 我特别喜欢<u>沉浸在吸引我的原版小说里</u>。这是我扩展词汇量和掌握好语法结构的好方法。事 实上,这就是我一直在改善我的英语阅读技能的方式。

**B**: 当我学新语言时,我喜欢<u>上网</u>和说英语的母语人士聊天。尤其是和菲教聊天,对提高我的英语特别有帮助。

#### 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究 针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



## 7. how are languages taught and learned in your school?

**A:** My English teachers primarily taught us by focusing on complex grammar concepts. Additionally, every day, we were bombarded with loads of reading and listening tasks that we had to tackle. It was a real challenge, but it definitely pushed us to improve our language skills.

**B:** In our school, teachers want us to actually use the language, <u>not just memorize stuff</u>. So we've got a bunch of awesome foreign teachers. They <u>bring in that real-world vibe</u> and encourage us to interact and communicate. It's like <u>having a taste of the language in action</u>, and it totally helps us level up our skills.

# 你的学校是如何教授和学习语言的?

A: 我们的英语老师主要是通过讲解复杂的语法概念来教我们。而且<u>每天都有大量的阅读和听力</u> 任务要完成。挺有挑战性的,但确实逼着我们提高了语言能力。

B: 在我们学校,老师更希望我们能实际使用语言,而<u>不仅仅是死记硬背</u>。所以我们有很多很棒的外教。他们<u>带来了一种真实世界的氛围</u>,并鼓励我们互动和沟通。这就像是<u>让我们亲身体验到</u> 语言是怎么在真实世界中运用的,这种方式非常有助于我们提高语言技能。


#### Topic 28 Health/Keep healthy

#### 1.How do you keep healthy?(高频)

**A:** I keep healthy by doing lots of exercise. Actually, I like having a different routine for each day of the week, as it keeps things from getting too boring. So for example, on Monday I'll <u>do cardio</u>, then on Tuesday I'll <u>do lower body</u>, and so on and so forth.

**B:** I keep healthy by maintaining a good diet. <u>Contrary to popular opinion</u>, a good diet isn't about restricting food but rather about <u>portion control</u>. Specifically, when it comes to sugary or fatty foods, you can still indulge in those, but you just can't have too much of them.

## 你如何保持健康?

A: 我通过多做运动来保持健康。实际上,我喜欢每天都有不同的锻炼内容,这样不会觉得无聊。 比如,周一我会做有氧运动,周二就会锻炼下半身,诸如此类这样每天做。

**B**: 我通过合理饮食来保持健康。<u>和大家普遍认为的不同</u>,事实上吃得好不是说要限制食物,而 是要控制分量。特别是高糖或高脂食品,吃点是可以的,关键是不能吃太多。

#### 2. Do you often do exercises?(高频)

**A:** Yes, I exercise pretty often. I like to exercise at least four or five times a week. Ideally I would exercise every day, but I get pretty busy with work. So <u>in the meantime, I do what I can</u>. I like biking and running the most. They always <u>keep me engaged</u>.

**B:** No, I don't exercise that often. <u>I always mean to, but</u> I just get so busy with work that I run out of time. I take my dog for a walk every morning and every night, but that's about as much exercise as I get. <u>I try</u> to compensate by having a healthy diet. • 雅想過二寸鍋綯广扂辅原創ミ

## 你经常做锻炼吗?

A: 是的,我经常运动。我一般一周会锻炼四到五次。理想状态下我每天都会运动,但工作总是 太忙了。所以<u>这种情况我都是尽量抽时间运动</u>。我最喜欢骑车和跑步,这两项运动总是能<u>让我保</u> 持精力充沛。

**B**:不,我不怎么运动。<u>我总是打算运动,但</u>工作太忙了,就没时间了。我每天早晚都会遛狗, 大概也就这么多了。不过我会<u>通过吃得健康些来弥补</u>。

#### 3.What is your favorite sport?(高频)

**A:** My favorite sport is definitely swimming. I find it very relaxing and enjoyable. Besides, it's a great way to <u>stay in shape</u> because it <u>works out the whole body</u>. I particularly enjoy going to a nearby gym every weekend morning, and I always feel refreshed and energized after the swim.

**B:** My favorite sport is probably basketball. It's a really <u>fast-paced sport</u>. You're constantly running up and down the court, which is definitely a workout on its own. It's so exciting when you <u>dribble down the court and then make a basket</u>. It's one of the best feelings in the world.

#### 你最喜欢的运动是什么?

A: 我最喜欢的绝对是游泳。我觉得很放松,也很有意思。而且,游泳是<u>保持身形</u>的好方法,因为它可以<u>锻炼全身</u>。我通常每周末早上会去附近的健身房游泳,游完后总觉得神清气爽。
B: 我可能最喜欢篮球。这是个<u>节奏很快的运动</u>,你得不停地在场地上跑来跑去,相当于是一种锻炼。当你在球场运球然后投篮得分的时候,那感觉真的超棒。

#### 4.Are there health classes in your school?(高频)

A: Yes, my school offers health classes, where you can learn about the human body, similar to biology classes. But <u>the focus is mostly on</u> how you can keep your own body healthy. In these classes, you can learn about the benefits of different exercises and what kind of diet you should have. <u>It's very important material to learn</u>.

**B:** No, my school doesn't offer health classes. I definitely think it should. After all, health classes are where people learn how to manage their own health. But <u>I guess that my school has different priorities</u>.<sup>—</sup> #####Home and the first th

## 你们的学校有健康课吗?

A: 是的,我们学校有健康课,可以学到人体的各种知识,和生物课有点像。但<u>课程重点是</u>教你 怎么保持自己身体的健康。在这些课上,你可以学习不同运动的好处和应该有怎样的饮食。<u>这些</u> 都是非常重要的知识。

**B**:不,我们学校没有健康课程。我觉得应该有。毕竟,健康课是教人如何管理自己的健康的地方。但<u>看来我校有别的重点。</u>

## <mark>见下页</mark>



#### 5. what sports help people stay healthy?

**A:** I think all types of exercise can help people stay healthy, but the key is finding the right kind of exercise for yourself. For example, if you <u>don't have enough endurance</u>, it's better to start with activities like biking or walking instead of <u>diving into long-distance running</u> right away.

**B:** I think <u>aerobic exercises</u> like jogging or swimming are really good for maintaining good health. They're not too hard on your body, but still do wonders for your heart and lungs. Plus, they're great for <u>burning</u> <u>calories and keeping you in shape</u>. That's why they're super helpful for staying healthy.

## 什么运动能帮助人们保持健康?

A: 我觉得所有类型的运动都能帮助人们保持健康,关键是找到适合自己的运动。比如,如果你 <u>没有足够的耐力</u>,最好从骑自行车或走路这种活动开始,而不是一开始就<u>投入大量精力进行长距</u> 离跑步。

B: 我认为<u>有氧运动</u>,比如慢跑或游泳,非常有助于维持身体健康。这些运动对身体没什么压力, 但却对心脏和肺很有好处。而且,还能<u>燃烧卡路里,保持身材</u>。这就是为什么它们在保持健康方 面特别有帮助。

## 6. Is it easy for people to exercise in your country?

A: Absolutely! In our country, every city is loaded with gyms and public fitness spots. <u>It's not an exaggeration to say that</u> if you're looking to get a good workout, you can easily find a place <u>within a 500-</u> meter radius of your home.

**B:** Yes, keeping fit is <u>a piece of cake</u> in our country. We've got a ton of awesome places where you can get your workout on, like badminton courts, swimming pools, <u>ice rinks</u>, and even golf courses. No matter what sport you're into, you can easily find a spot that caters to your interests.

## 在你的国家人们锻炼很容易吗?

A: 绝对容易!我们国家的每个城市都有很多健身房和公共健身场所。<u>不夸张的说</u>,如果你想找 个锻炼的地方,在家附近 500 米内都能找到。

**B**: 是的,在我们国家保持身体健康<u>非常容易</u>。我们有很多很棒的运动场所,比如羽毛球场、游泳池、<u>溜冰场</u>,甚至高尔夫球场。不管你喜欢什么运动,都能很容易找到适合你的地方。

## 见下页

雅思过过过

## Topic 29 Fixing things

## 1.Can you fix things? What things can you fix?(高频)

**A:** Yes, <u>I'm pretty handy when it comes to</u> fixing things. I've managed to fix <u>creaky door hinges</u> and some common household appliances. Honestly, I prefer fixing something myself rather than hiring someone. I always get a great feeling of accomplishment when I fix something.

**B:** No, I'm not good at fixing things. <u>I've tried my hand at it before</u>, but I honestly don't know <u>how to</u> <u>handle a screwdriver or anything like that</u>. Whenever something is broken around the house, I just ask my parents to help. Or I'll even hire someone if I don't want to bother them.

## 你能修理东西吗?你能修理什么东西呢?

A: 是的,<u>我在修东西方面还挺在行的</u>。我成功修好过<u>嘎吱作响的门铰链</u>和一些常见的家用电器。 说实话,我更喜欢亲自修理东西,而不是雇人修。每当我修好一样东西,我总有一种很有成就感 的感觉。

**B**:不,我不擅长修东西。<u>我之前自己试过</u>,但说实话,我真不知道<u>怎么用螺丝刀之类的工具</u>。 家里有东西坏了,我通常会请父母帮忙,或者如果不想麻烦他们,我就会雇人来修。

## 2.Did anybody teach you to fix things when you were a child? (高频)

A: Yes, my uncle taught me to fix things when I was a kid. <u>He's a professional handyman</u>. Whenever my parents asked him to fix something around the house, he always asked me to help him out and be his little assistant. I learned a lot that way. \* 推測過過目句實度論屬創回

**B:** Well, yes, I asked my mom to teach me to sew by hand and using a machine when I was 12-years-old. <u>This has come in pretty handy</u> over the years whenever I needed to repair or <u>alter my clothing</u>.

## 你小时候有人教你修东西吗?

A: 是的,我小时候叔叔教过我修东西。<u>他是个专业的维修工人</u>。每当我父母让他修理家里的东西,他总是叫我帮他,做他的小助手。我通过这种方式学到了很多东西。

**B**: 是的,我12岁的时候请妈妈教我手工缝纫和使用缝纫机缝东西。<u>这些技能多年来非常有用</u>, 每当我需要修理或改衣服时都能派上用场。



#### 3.Do you think it is necessary for people to learn to fix things?(高频)

**B:** No, I don't think it's necessary. Nowadays, it's very easy to hire someone to <u>handle repairs</u> if something breaks down. <u>Granted</u>, it does cost a lot of money. But not everyone has the time to learn that knowledge. So I think it's fine to delegate the task to a professional.

## 你认为人们有必要学会修理东西吗?

A: 是的,我认为是的。现在人们太习惯雇别人来修理坏掉的东西了。但他们应该学会<u>更加自力</u> 更生。掌握一些自己动手的技能很重要,因为<u>从长远来看</u>可以省钱。

**B**:不,我不认为有必要。现在很容易雇人来<u>处理修理工作。当然</u>,这会花费很多钱。但并不是 每个人都有时间学这些技能。所以我认为把任务交给专业人士也是可以的。

## 4.What do you do when a thing is broken and can't be fixed?(高频)

A: When something is broken and can't be fixed, I try to <u>repurpose it as much as I can</u>. For example, if a piece of machinery breaks, I <u>take it apart and use its spare parts for something else</u>. I think it's important to try to reduce waste as much as we can.

**B:** If something can't be fixed, I usually just throw it out. I know that it's a little wasteful. But honestly, you can't really repurpose stuff that easily. So for me, it's better to just throw it out and buy something new. I don't like having broken things lying around in my house.

当一个东西坏了,不能被修复时,你该怎么办?

A: 当一件东西坏了无法修复时,我会<u>尽可能地二次利用它</u>。例如,如果一台机器坏了,我会<u>把</u> 它拆开,将零件用于其他用途。我认为尽量减少浪费很重要。

**B**:如果一样东西修不好,我通常会直接扔掉。我知道这有点浪费,但<u>说实话,很难轻松地二次</u> <u>利用</u>。所以对我来说,还是扔掉然后买新的比较好。我不喜欢<u>家里有坏的东西摆在那里</u>。

#### 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答

#### Topic 30 Day off

#### 1.When was the last time you had a few days off?(高频)

A: I took a week off work(work 可替换为 study/from studying) at the beginning of May to go on a family vacation. We <u>went on a self-drive trip</u> to a nearby coastal city and <u>had an amazing time filled with</u> fun activities and memorable experiences.

B: The last time that I had time off was in April. I took almost a month off to train and compete in a dance competition. Luckily, <u>I work very flexible hours</u>, so I'm able to focus on my hobbies <u>when I feel like it</u>. 你上次休息几天是什么时候?

A: 我在五月初请了一周的假去和家人度假。我们<u>自驾游</u>去了附近的一个海滨城市,<u>度过了一段</u> 充满有趣活动和难忘经历的美好时光。

**B**: 我上次休假是在四月份。我休了差不多一个月的假来参加一个舞蹈比赛。幸运的是,<u>我的工</u>作时间很灵活,所以我可以随时在我想要的时候专注于我的爱好。

#### 2.What do you usually do when you have days off?(高频)

A: I normally try to spend as much time as possible outdoors on my days off. Working and studying indoors can get really depressing, especially in the summer. Getting out in the sun <u>never fails to rejuvenate</u> <u>me</u>.

**B:** I like spending my time off playing video games or watching films and series. Working 40 hours a week really <u>drains my energy</u>, so I need to relax when I get the chance. I also enjoy <u>sleeping in</u> when I don't have to work.

#### 你休息的时候通常会做什么?

A: 通常我在休假时尽量多待在户外。在室内工作和学习会让人感到郁闷,尤其是夏天。晒晒太阳<u>总能让我重新充满活力</u>。

**B**: 我喜欢在休假时玩视频游戏或者看电影和电视剧。每周工作 40 小时真的会<u>耗尽我的精力</u>,所以我需要放松一下。我也喜欢在不工作时<u>睡会儿懒觉</u>。



#### 3.Do you usually spend your days off with your parents or with your friends?(高频)

A: My parents live in a city <u>miles away from me</u>, so <u>I don't get the chance to</u> see them very often. Instead, I'm more likely to spend time with my partner or with my best friend who lives across the street from me. 怨症認過這一句主席翻讓創一

**B:** I always <u>prioritize spending time with family</u>. Not just my parents, but my brother and sister and their families too. <u>If you ask me, there's nothing more valuable than family</u>. Besides, our parents won't be around forever, so spending time with them is important.

## 你通常和父母或朋友一起度过假期吗?

A: 我父母住在<u>离我很远的</u>城市,所以<u>我很少有机会</u>见到他们。相反,我更可能和我的伴侣或住 在我隔壁的最好的朋友一起度过时间。

**B**: 我总是<u>优先考虑和家人在一起</u>。不仅是我的父母,还有我的兄弟姐妹和他们的家庭。<u>如果要</u> <u>问我,我觉得没有什么比家庭更重要的了</u>。而且,父母不会永远在身边,所以和他们在一起很重 要。

## 4.What would you like to do if you had a day off tomorrow?(高频)

A: If I had a day off tomorrow, I would probably <u>treat myself to a day at the mall</u>. Shopping for clothes and beauty products is something I truly enjoy, but with my busy work schedule, I <u>hardly ever get the chance to do it</u>.

**B:** If I had a day off, I would probably <u>sleep in</u> and not wake up before 10 am. With my busy schedule of studying tasks, getting some proper rest would be essential to <u>recharge my batteries and boost my energy levels</u>.

## 如果你明天休息一天,你想做什么?

A:如果明天有一天假,我可能会<u>去购物中心犒劳一下自己</u>。购买衣物和化妆品是我真正喜欢的 事情,但由于繁忙的工作安排,<u>我很少有机会去做</u>。

**B**:如果我有一天假,我可能会<u>睡懒觉</u>,不会在早上十点前醒来。对于我来说,在我繁忙的学习 日程中,得到充分的休息对于<u>给自己充电和提高精力水平</u>至关重要。

#### 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究 针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### 5.Do you get many days off each week?

**A:** I'm a student(或 teacher), so <u>I get weekends and all national holidays off</u>. <u>On top of that</u>, I'm lucky to have a one-month break in winter and a two-month break in summer. People say students get too much vacation, but we really need these breaks to recharge and regain our energy!

**B:** As an accountant, I get weekends off. My company also offers everyone four weeks of vacation per year, which is <u>more than the standard</u>. While it's fair, <u>I wouldn't say no to having more time off</u>.

## 你每周有很多休息日吗?

A: 我是学生(或老师),所以<u>我每周周末以及所有法定节假日都可以休息。除此之外</u>,我还很 幸运地在冬天有一个月的寒假、夏天有两个月的暑假。人们说学生休假太多,但我们真的需要这 些假期来恢复体力和精力!

**B**: 作为一名会计师,我周末会休息。我的公司还为每个人提供四周的年假,这<u>比惯例规定给的</u>要多。虽然这很公平的,但其实我不会拒绝拥有更多的休息时间。



#### <mark>Topic 31 Rain</mark>

#### 1.Do you like rainy days?(高频)

**A:** Yes, I love rainy days. For me, it's the perfect opportunity to <u>curl up with a book and be cozy inside</u>. Plus, it's nice to have an excuse not to go anywhere. Sometimes you just want to <u>stay in</u> and have a relaxing time.

B: No, I hate rainy days. <u>I'm a big outdoors person</u>. So whenever it rains, I'm always bummed that I have to stay inside. I'd much rather go for a walk or do something outside. Plus, I've found that the rain always manages to ruin your plans. It's such a downer. 羅龍江寸周江寸匋宝扂鋪原創...

## 你喜欢雨天吗?

A: 喜欢,我喜欢雨天。对我来说,这是绝佳的机会,能让我<u>蜷缩在家里看书,享受温馨的室内</u> 氛围。而且,有个借口不出门也很不错。有时候,你只想待在家里,享受轻松的时光。

**B**:不喜欢,我讨厌雨天。<u>我是个热爱户外活动的人</u>,所以每次下雨我都感到郁闷,因为只能呆 在室内。我更愿意出去散步或者在外面做些事情。而且,我发现雨总是会<u>破坏你的计划</u>,<u>真是让</u> 人心情沮丧。

## 2.Does it rain much in your city?(高频)

**A:** Yes, <u>it rains a ton</u> in my city. It's not an exaggeration to say that we have rain for at least half of the year. This makes it challenging to <u>get a glimpse of the sun</u>, and the air remains constantly humid as well.

**B:** No, it hardly ever rains in my city. Even <u>in the supposed rainy season of July and August</u>, there are only <u>a few isolated showers</u>. So the air in our city is often very dry, and to be honest, I don't enjoy this type of weather.

## 你所在的城市经常下雨吗?

A: 是的,在我们的城市<u>常常下雨</u>。可以毫不夸张地说,一年中至少有一半时间都在下雨。这让 人们很难见到太阳,而且空气一直很潮湿。

**B**:不,我们的城市几乎不下雨。即使在<u>所谓的七八月份的雨季</u>,也只有<u>零星的几场阵雨</u>。所以 我们城市的空气通常非常干燥,老实说,我不喜欢这种天气。

## <mark>见下页</mark>

#### 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创---版权所有 盗版必究 针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### 3.Would you like to live in a place that is dry or wet?(高频)

**A:** I'd love to live in a place with a wet climate because I enjoy the rain and <u>the refreshing feeling it brings</u>. Besides, I once experienced <u>nosebleeds</u> in a northern city because of low humidity. So, I don't enjoy excessively dry climates.

**B:** I like places with less moisture because they tend to have more sunny days. Besides, if you're <u>constantly</u> <u>stuck in a cold and damp place</u>, it can really <u>bring you down</u> and limit your chances to enjoy outdoor activities.

#### 你喜欢住在干燥的地方还是潮湿的地方?

A: 我想住在气候潮湿的地方,因为我喜欢雨和<u>它带来的清新感觉</u>。而且,我曾经在北方的一个 城市因为湿度太低而流过鼻血。所以,我不喜欢过于干燥的气候。

**B**: 我喜欢湿度较低的地方,因为那里通常有更多的晴天。而且,如果你<u>一直待在寒冷而潮湿的</u>地方,会让你情绪低落,限制你享受户外活动的机会。

# 4.Have rain ever disrupted your travel plans? /Do you enjoy going out in the rain?/ Would you change your plan if it rained (高频)

A: Yes, once my friend and I had planned to have a meal together, but we had to cancel due to a sudden heavy rain. To be honest, I'm not a fan of going out on rainy days since the rain always soaks my clothes and shoes, and the traffic tends to be a nightmare. 主張總過上寸過續主官銷願創。

**B:** Well, I've never had an important event that <u>got rained on</u>. Actually, I don't think it's a bad thing to go out in the rain. The sound of <u>raindrops pattering against my umbrella</u> is quite pleasing, and rainy days always make me feel more relaxed. So I enjoy going out in the rain.

## 雨曾经打乱过你的旅行计划吗? /你喜欢在雨中外出吗? /如果下雨了,你会改变你的计划吗?

A: 是的,有一次我和朋友计划一起吃饭,但因为突然下大雨不得不取消了。老实说,在雨天<u>我</u> <u>不喜欢</u>外出,因为雨总是把我的衣服和鞋子都弄湿了,而且<u>交通通常会变成非常可怕</u>。

B: 我从来没有遇到重要的事件<u>被雨淋过</u>。事实上,我觉得在雨中外出并不是件坏事。<u>雨滴敲打</u> <u>在我的伞上</u>的声音相当令人愉悦,雨天总是让我感到更加轻松。所以我喜欢在雨中外出。

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



Topic 32 Riding a bike(考频不高,可以不复习)

#### 1. Did you have a bike when you were a young?

A: Yeah, back when I was in elementary school, my dad got me a bike and showed me how to ride it. <u>That</u> bike is still chilling at my home.

**B:** No, when I was little, I only rode those <u>kiddie tricycles</u>. But once I started going to primary school, my dad would always <u>pick me up and drop me off</u>, so I never thought about learning how to ride a bike. That's why I've never had my own bicycle.

## 你年轻时(小时候)有自行车吗?

A: 是的,在我上小学的时候,我爸爸给我买了一辆自行车,教我怎么骑。<u>那辆自行车还在我家</u>放着。

**B**:不,我在很小的时候骑过<u>儿童三轮车</u>。但开始上小学后,我爸爸总是来<u>接送我</u>,所以我从来 没有想过学习如何骑自行车。这就是为什么我从来没有拥有过自己的自行车。

## 2. Did you ride a bike when you were little?

A: Yeah, I used to enjoy going to the park with my friends to ride bikes. We would have friendly competitions to see who could pedal the fastest, and more often than not, I came out on top.

**B:** When I was a kid, I never really <u>got the hang of riding a bike</u>. Maybe it was because I wasn't very athletic, but the fear of losing my balance and taking a tumble always held me back. So, I never really gave it a shot.

## 你小时候骑自行车吗?

A: 是的,我以前很喜欢和朋友们去公园骑自行车。我们会有友谊赛,看看谁能骑得最快,<u>而且</u> 我经常领先。

**B**: 我小时候从来没有真正<u>学会骑自行车</u>。也许是因为我不太擅长运动,反正对于失去平衡和摔 倒的恐惧总是让我退缩。所以,我从来<u>没有真正尝试过</u>。

## <mark>见下页</mark>

针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺的售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答



#### 3. Did you ride a bike to school?

**A:** Yeah, when I was in high school, my parents got me a bike because my house was pretty far from the school. So, every day, I would join my friends and <u>ride our bikes together to school and back</u>.

**B:** No, I didn't ride a bike to school. In primary school, my dad <u>used to give me rides in his car</u>, and when I moved on to high school, I actually <u>went to a boarding school</u>. So, I never had to think about commuting or riding a bike to get to school.

## 你骑自行车去上学了吗?

A: 是的,我上高中时候,我的父母给我买了一辆自行车,因为我家离学校很远。所以,每天我都会和我的朋友们一起骑自行车去上下学。

**B**:不,我没有骑自行车去过学校。在小学的时候,我爸爸<u>经常开车接送我</u>,当我后来上高中后, 我实际上<u>去了一所寄宿学校</u>。所以,我从来没有想过上学通勤的事或是骑自行车去上学。

## 4. Do you ride a bike when you go out now?

A: Well, yes, sometimes, if the destination isn't too far, I choose to <u>ride a shared bicycle</u>. It's super affordable and <u>eco-friendly</u>.

**B:** Unfortunately, I haven't learned how to ride a bike yet, <u>even to this day</u>. So, when I go out, I usually rely on public transportation or take a taxi. I've never had the chance to experience the joy of cycling.

## 你现在出去的时候会骑自行车吗?

A: 是的,有时候如果目的地不太远,我就会选择<u>骑共享单车</u>。共享自行车超级实惠,而且<u>非常</u>环保。

**B**:遗憾的是,<u>直到今天</u>,我还没有学会如何骑自行车。所以,当我出去时,我通常要依靠公共 交通或坐出租车。我从来没有机会体验到骑自行车的乐趣。